# **Table of Contents**

# **Integrated Service Technical Application**

## Subject

#### Page

Introduction	6
ISTA Operating Modes	8
HO Workshop Mode	8
Online	8
Offline	8
TeleServices	8
Data Evchange with Other Systems	10
ISDA Brokor	10
ISFA DIOREI	10
Distinguishing Different Makes	10
	10
Options for text entry (on-screen keyboard)	13
Quick System Overview	14
Starting the ISTA Client	14
Checking the Operations List	15
Selecting a Vehicle	16
Selecting a Diagnostic Connection to the Vehicle	17
Creating an Operation	19
Creating a New Operation or Selecting an Existing Operation	20
Perform Vehicle Test	21
Display Fault Memory	22
Editing a Test Plan	23
Running a Procedure	24
Terminating an Operation	
ISTA Menu Structure	26
Start Mask	27
Disnlaving New Items	
Identification	20
Vahiala Salaatian	20
	29
Vehicle Identification Number	34

## Subject

## Page

Reading Out Vehicle Data	35
Identification Operation	36
Reading Out Vehicle Data via the Connection Manager	36
Basic Features	37
Incomplete Entry of Basic Features	38
Operation Information	39
Operation Details	39
Vehicle Details	40
Operations Report	41
Print operations report or diagnostic report	42
FBM Reports (FASTA)	42
Vehicle Test	42
Control Unit Tree	43
Control Unit Functions	
Identification	44
Diagnostic query	45
Component activation	
Control unit list	
Activities	
Information Search	
Product Structure	48
Filters	49
Function Structure	51
Components and Signals	52
Text Search	53
Additional general information on the text search	54
Assisted Troubleshooting	55
Fault Memory	55
Display detail table	57
Fault Pattern	58
Selected fault natterns	50 50
Service Function	60
Workshon/onorating fluids	61 E
Workshop Equipment	61
Measuring Devices	20 20
	03
	04
vviring Diagrams	
Display several documents simultaneously	69

Subject	Page
Whole Screen	70
Zoom Function	71
Test Plan	72
Displaying and Editing a Procedure	75
Message	75
Substitute value input	76
Question	77
Displaying and editing a procedure in BST mode	78
Symbol Bar	79
Start Mask	80
History list	80
Administration	81
Client settings	81
Language settings	82
Dealer data	83
Software status	84
Connection Manager	85
Operating Mode	87
Status Display	88
Printing	89
Help Functions	90
Table of Contents	91
List of Abbreviations	92
	93
Minimize Workshop System	94
Close Operation/application	94
Operations	95
	95
	95
Identification via VIN Entry	96
Vehicle Identification by Reading Out Vehicle Data	96
Venicle Identification via Basic Features	97
Identification in "TeleServices" Operating Mode	98
	98
In progress	
	1.99
	.100
Perininaleo	100
Re-open terminated operation	101
	101
	.101

## Subject

## Page

Time-dependent status change	
Workshop PC	
ISID in offline mode	
TeleServices	
Terminating an operation	
Abbreviations	
Glossary	
Fault Messages and Fault Rectification	

# **Integrated Service Technical Application (ISTA)**

## Model: All

**Production: All** 



# Introduction

ISTA or the ISTA workshop system consists of several functionally oriented system components that communicate with each other via LAN, WLAN and Internet. The entire system supplies up-to-date diagnostic data and information from BMW headquarters. The primary applications of the terminal devices are powerful diagnostics on the vehicle, with various options for vehicle identification for highly specific information searches and guided troubleshooting. The associated software is a client/server solution known as ISTA. The ISTA client software is installed on the Integrated Service Information Display (ISID) operator devices and the workshop PC. It communicates with the ISTA server software that runs on the Integrated Service Information Server (ISIS). ISID can operate temporarily offline and then be resynchronized later with the server. In a large dealer organization (HO) workshop, several ISIS may be present.



Note: For more information regarding ISTA, please refer to Dealernet and select: Menu>BMW>Aftersales Portal>Service>Workshop Technology and access the ISTA User Manual file. You can also type Workshop Technology in the search engine and that will prompt you to the correct web page.

#### Integrated Service Information Server (ISIS)

ISIS is the workshop server. In addition to other applications, the server-specific component of the ISTA software is installed on ISIS.

The workshop server is connected with BMW AG via an internet link. BMW AG makes the data available via the ISPA Broker and JET stream.

#### Integrated Service Information Display (ISID)

ISID is a mobile tester for workshop use integrated into the workshop network. The scope of delivery consists of a control panel, a base station and accessories. An ISTA client is installed on the ISID. The device can be operated "online" (in conjunction with the ISTA server) or "offline" (temporary interruption of connection with the ISTA server).

#### Integrated Measurement Interface Box (IMIB)

The IMIB is a powerful measuring instrument that is used in the BMW Group dealer organization. It contains several measuring units that can simulate the performance of an oscilloscope or a digital multimeter. The IMIB contains adjustable current and voltage sources which can be used as voltage and current supplies.

You can use the IMIB as a multimeter, even if not connected to ISTA, or execute more complex functions with ISTA. You can establish a link between ISID and IMIB via LAN or WLAN.

The IMIB can be operated in two modes in conjunction with ISTA:

- Interactively as a manually adjusted measuring instrument
- Embedded in test processes as an automated measuring instrument

With the manually adjusted measuring instrument you can make manual settings in the relevant masks once a connection to the measuring instrument system has been established. The results are displayed in the mask. For additional information, see IMIB section.

With the guided measuring instrument, the measuring instrument system is automatically adjusted via program instructions in the test sequence. The results are displayed in specific masks and evaluated by the program.

### Integrated Communication Optical Module (ICOM)

ICOM is a communication device and constitutes the diagnostic interface to the vehicle. It is connected to the vehicle and can be linked to an ISID via a connection manager. Thus ISID can communicate with the vehicle, e.g. for automatic vehicle identification, or for executing test programs.

### Integrated Service Access Point (ISAP)

ISAP is a communication device (Access Point) for linking WLAN-capable devices to the workshop network.

### Personal Computer (PC)

You can also install an ISTA client on a PC or a workshop PC, for example. As these devices are fixed, a PC is primarily suitable for information searches.

#### Printer

Approved and standard commercial network printers are used for printing jobs.

## **ISTA Operating Modes**

## **HO Workshop Mode**

In the HO workshop mode, the terminal devices can be operated both "online" (default) as well as "offline".

#### Online

In this operating mode, the client and the workshop server are located in an HO workshop and are connected via the local workshop network (LAN, WLAN). An online connection to BMW AG is established. ISTA software can be operated on a mobile ISID and/or a stationary workshop PC.

The online link not only supports the prompt update of ISTA data and software, but also provides access to data from other systems at BMW headquarters. Data access usually occurs in the background when certain functions are accessed.

#### Offline

In this mode, the client is temporarily separated from the workshop server. For example, this is necessary if the ISID is used on a test drive with the vehicle. The changeover from online to offline mode and back again is performed by the Workshop Management System (WSM). Once the client is online again, the software synchronizes itself automatically with the workshop server. The same thing happens if the server crashes and is available again at a later point in time.

#### TeleServices

In the "TeleServices" operating mode, communication with the vehicle is performed via the mobile phone network (GSM). The vehicle transmits a service call to the central TeleServices switchboard (TSSB) either automatically triggered by Condition Based Service (CBS) scopes or manually by the driver. In the process additional fault memory data and control device information is transmitted in the form of a file. This data is transmitted to the home dealer of the customer via the TSSB and can be read out there with ISTA.

This option is only available if the application for ISPA service advice and order control has been installed on ISPA. ISTA is then called up in the "TeleServices" operating mode by the service advisor from the ISPA Client. The first mask that is displayed in ISTA after it is called up in this mode is the fault memory list of the identified vehicle.

Only limited ISTA functions are available in the "TeleServices" operating mode. No direct link is established with the vehicle at any time.

#### **TeleServices components**



TeleServices on workshop PC (no current screenshot)



After the data has been read out, the "Fault memory" mask is displayed. From here a test plan can be accessed. You can now search for information objects.

## **Data Exchange with Other Systems**

## **ISPA Broker**

Score Broker is an online interface with BMW AG. It enables the calling-up of information on technical actions, fault patterns (Customer's own words/Customer's quote, qualified), vehicle details, repair history and vehicle rundown. The information is integrated into the respective masks and requires an online connection of the ISPA Broker to BMW AG. (Not yet in US)

## **JET Stream**

JET stream is an online interface to BMW AG. It provides updated software (content and system packages) and transmits nonprocedurally defined data to the vehicle description module (FBM) at BMW AG. The information is integrated into the respective masks and requires an online link to BMW AG.

## **Distinguishing Different Makes**

The user interface is standardized for the BMW, MINI and Rolls-Royce brands. The various brands - depending on the authorization of the respective business - can be identified by the different colors of the active objects in the display. A marked object is thus highlighted on the screen in the respective brand color. Furthermore, depending on authorization level, the brand in the header of the start mask will be displayed as text.

Brand	Logo left	Logo right	Color
BMW Group Multi-brand dealers	BMW Service Workshop System	MINI Service Workshop System	turquois e
BMW	BMW Service Workshop System		blue
MINI	MINI Service Workshop System		orange
Rolls-Royce	Rolls-Royce Motorcars Service Workshop System		chamois

Colors and logos are listed in the table below:

## **General Operation of the ISTA Workshop System**

The graphic displays on the screen are known as "masks". These contain information and control functions that enable the user to operate the ISTA workshop system.

The masks normally have a standard structure. They are divided into the following sections:

- 1. Symbol bar
- 2. Header
- 3. Navigation area
- 4. Content range
- 5. Comment line
- 6. Action line

tegrated Service echnical Applic	se ation	1	121 1	×		S 1		?	1	×
IN: B097005		Tehicle: 57661/	TOUR.625 M	64IAUT/E	UR RL/2004/0	1				-
dentification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service	plan						
aformation earch	Guided troubleshooting	Service function	Worksho Operation	ip <i>)</i> ng fluids	Measuring devices					-
reduct tructure	Function structure	Components and signals	Text sea	urch						
Subgroups					Selected	structure el	ements			
6719 servalyos 6730 matars wi 6731 Drive, sea 6732 drive, hea 6733 drive, ele 6750 actuater ti 6751 transmiss 6753 transmiss 6753 transmiss	itioning drives th no transmissions at adjustment tinglventilationlair con the lock ransmission ion, heatinglventilation ion, negting ventilation ion, electric lock ion, electric lock	i.			67 Electri Subgrou 6752 tran	ieal Drives	wiper syste			•
6761 drive, slid	e-tilt sunrooficonv. top			-						
ite: 4	Filter: Default									- +

#### Symbol bar

The symbol bar is visible in all masks. The functions that can be called via the individual symbols are described in the ISTA Menu Structure Chapter.

#### Header

The vehicle identification number and the basic features of the identified vehicle are displayed in the header. The vehicle identification number is only displayed if the vehicle has been identified by entering or reading out its vehicle identification number.

#### Navigation area

You can navigate among the individual functions of the workshop system using the:

- ◊ main menu (first line)
- ◊ submenu (second line), and
- ♦ tabs.

The selected menu items or tabs are marked in the appropriate brand color.

#### Content range

This is where you will find further selection options and information. A white arrow pointing up or down identifies the column that is used for sorting a selection list.

#### **Comment line**

The bottom part of the content range may also contain a comment line in which you will receive additional information.

#### Action line

Various buttons are shown here according to the content range.

## **Options for text entry (on-screen keyboard)**

In various masks, it may be necessary to enter text or characters. In general, this can be done using the PC keyboard. By clicking on the "Keyboard" button you can fade in the so-called "on-screen keyboard". Only keys that are necessary to make valid entries at the respective function step are enabled on the on-screen keyboard. Impermissible characters cannot be selected with the on-screen keyboard.

Integrated Service Technical Applica	ce ation	1	1 × F	9 5		?	9	>
VIN: VA20008		Vehicle: 37E90/	SAL/320d/M47/T2/AUT/E	EUR LL/2004/11				
identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan					
Information search	Guided troubleshooting	Service function	Workshop / Operating fluids	Measuring devices				
Product structure	Function structure	Components and signals	Text search					
		Search term:						
		axie						
		Search in the	he document title					
		O Search in f	ha dagumant					
		O searching	ne document					
		O Search for	document number					
Filter: Default								
Keyboard	Filters						Start	

A second click on the "Keyboard" button hides the on-screen keyboard.

**On-screen keyboard: Entering search terms** 

## **Quick System Overview**

## **Starting the ISTA Client**

How to start the ISTA Client:

- ◊ Double-click the symbol on the Windows desktop (if displayed) ; or
- ◊ Open the application in the program file by selecting "Start All Programs ISTA ISTA Client"; or
- Open the application by selecting the corresponding entry on the central start page on the ISID.

After selection, the start mask appears a list of news will be displayed. You can set the display period in Administration.

If the date has changed since the last time the system was activated, the "ISTA usage notes" will be displayed. After reading the note, close the pop up window by clicking the "Continue" button.

Integrated Servic Technical Applic	ce ation	<b>A</b>	10 1 1	-	S 8	2	E X
	BMW Ser Worksho	r <b>vice</b> p System					
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan				
News						Da	te 🔻
						_	
							Display

You can initiate an identification procedure from the start mask.

- ► To initiate an identification procedure for a vehicle:
  - ◊ Select the "Identification" menu

## **Checking the Operations List**

# Note: In the "Central/online" operating mode (OSS and TeleServices), the "Operations list" tab is not available for technical reasons. Proceed with next section.

After you have selected the "Identification" menu from the start mask, the workshop system switches to the "Operations list" tab.

Each identification session generates a "procedure" that is automatically initiated and administered by the workshop system for vehicle identification. At the end of the session an operation is closed via a pop up. The user can thus choose whether he wants to terminate or interrupt the operation. Depending on the option selected, an operation is concluded via a pop up, assigned a status ("terminated", "interrupted") and entered into the operations list for a certain period. Saved procedures can be reopened from the operations list.

Integrated Service Technical Applicat	e tion	<b>A</b>	P		2 ? 😨 🗡				
VIN:		Vehicle:							
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan						
Vehicle selection	Operation information								
Operations list	VIN	Read out vehicle data	Basic features						
Basic features	12	VIN		Date/time	Status				
E46 / 320d / TOU	R / M47	PE46572		16/04/2008 12:13	Interrupted				
E46 / 318i / SAL /	M43/TU	JJ57307		16/04/2008 12:11	Interrupted				
E46 / 318i / SAL /	M43/TU	AY27004		16/04/2008 12:11	Interrupted				
E82 / 135is / COU	IPE / N64	VE99063 16/04/2			Interrupted				
E90 / 330i / LIM /	N52	PR23000		16/04/2008 10:52	Interrupted				
E91 / 318i / TOUR	R / N46	KW69004		16/04/2008 10:33	Interrupted				
E32 / 750IL / LIM	/ M70	DC71313		16/04/2008 10:26	Interrupted				
E32 / 750IL / LIM	/ M70	DC71313		16/04/2008 10:26	Interrupted				
E32 / 750iL / LIM	/ M70	DC71313		16/04/2008 09:37	Interrupted				
E46 / 318Ci / COU	JPE / N42	PK62200		15/04/2008 11:15	Interrupted				
E82 / 135is / COU	/ 135is / COUPE / N54		E82 / 135is / COUPE / N54		VE99063		VE99063		Interrupted
E82 / 135is / COU	IPE / N54	VE99063		14/04/2008 13:49	Interrupted				
Operations filter:	Default								
Filter operations list	Set standard filter				Accept				

Additional information is available in the "ISTA Menu Structure" section.

#### **Operations list**

The selection of an existing procedure is not suitable for the "Short introduction" provided here. Therefore change to the "Read out vehicle data" tab.

## **Selecting a Vehicle**

There are four options for initiating vehicle identification:

- ◊ by selecting an operation
- ◊ by entering a vehicle identification number
- ◊ by reading out the vehicle data, or
- ♦ by selecting basic features.

The most reliable way to identify a vehicle is by reading out the vehicle data from a connected vehicle.

- How to identify a vehicle by reading out the vehicle data and automatically creating an operation to do this:
  - ◊ Click the "Identification" main menu item in the navigation area.
  - ♦ Select the "Read out vehicle data" tab and follow the instructions provided.
  - ◊ Click the "OK" button.

Integrated Servic Technical Applica	e tion	<b>A</b> 3	10 > 1	00 S	Î.	≞ ?	
VIN:		Vehicle:	1248	221	- 10-	10	
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan				
Vehicle selection	Operation information						
Operations list	VIN	Read out vehicle data	Basic features				
• Switch on vehic	le ignition.						

#### Preparations for reading out vehicle data

After a short interval, the connection manager appears.

## Selecting a Diagnostic Connection to the Vehicle

The ISTA communication devices from the HO workshop are entered into the content range of the connection manager.

- ► How to select the communication device:
  - ◊ Determine which ICOM is connected to the vehicle to be identified.
  - Select the appropriate components in the connection manager and click the "Set up connection" button.

connection manager					
Name	Colour	Туре	VIN	Connection	Status
lcom1		ICOM	4 A	LAN	Free
onnect vehicle interface.	Switch on vehicle ignition.		9		
Cancel				Separate	Set up connection

**Connection manager** 

After the "Set up connection" button is selected and clicked, the connection will be set up. The tester performs a vehicle identification. To do this, it reads out the vehicle identification number from the vehicle. The progress of the identification procedure is displayed on a progress bar.

Integrated Service Technical Applicat	tion	rh.	1	雷 >	y	9	57	1	123	?	1	X
VIN:	ostore C	Vehicle	É									
Identification	Vehicle test	Activiti	es	Servic	e plan							
Vehicle selection	Operation Information	1										
Operations list	VIN	Read o vehicle	ut data	Basic f	eabures			4114				
Connect vehicle	interface.											
Switch on vehicle	e ignition.											
		Identif	ication o	peration				<				
		Read o	ut vehic	le identifica	tion numb	er (VIN)	2					
											ок	

#### Identification procedure

## **Creating an Operation**

After the identification procedure, the workshop system tries to uniquely assign the operation to an existing operation. If this does not succeed, it automatically creates a new operation and switches over directly to the "Operation details" mask.

If operations with the same identification features are already available in the workshop system, these will be offered for selection in the "Assignment/generation of operation" list.

Assignment/generation of o	peration		
Basic features	VIN	Date/time	Status
E90 / 320d / SAL / M47/T2	VA20008	16/04/2008 13:38	Terminated
E90 / 320d / SAL / M47/T2	VA20008	15/04/2008 15:33	Terminated
E90 / 320d / SAL / M47/T2	VA20008	18/04/2008 16:18	Terminated
		blaur	
Cancel		operation	ОК

## **Creating a New Operation or Selecting an Existing Operation**

- ► How to assign an operation:
  - ♦ Select an existing operation or click the "New operation" button.
  - ♦ Click the "OK" button.

If no unique assignment is produced (e.g.: the other operation is open or several suitable operations are available), a corresponding pop up is displayed.

Additional information is available in "ISTA Menu Structure Chapter" under Operation details (without an online connection to BMW AG).

Operation details for "Technical actions" and "Customer complaints" require an online connection to BMW AG.

You can specifically search for various types of information via the "Search for information" button.

You can start the vehicle test by clicking on the "Perform vehicle test" button.

## **Perform Vehicle Test**

The vehicle test runs automatically the first time for each operation. During the vehicle test, the "Control unit tree" submenu is displayed by default. Alternatively you can switch to the corresponding list of control devices by selecting the "Control unit list" entry from the submenu.

The control unit tree displays the maximum number of control units installed in a vehicle, and their assignments in the respective bus system, in the form of a chart. At the beginning of the vehicle test, the rectangular symbols are not colored. Non-installed control units in the identified vehicle are shown in gray in the display. Currently processed (or selected) control units are displayed in the color of the mask.

While the vehicle test is being performed, you can follow its progress on the screen as the displayed symbols are updated in real-time.

From this mask, you can if required restart the vehicle test or also call up control unit functions so that you can read out measurements or activate actuating elements.

Before you can access a test plan you must first display the fault memory.

- ► How to view the fault memory:
  - ◊ Wait until the vehicle test is completed.
  - ♦ Click the "Display fault memory" button.

Integrated Service Technical Applicat	lon	rîn l	( [P	>	1	99	SI	<u>î</u> :	1161	?	F	×
VIN: VA20008		Vehicle: 3	/E90/SAL/	320 <i>d/</i> M47/	T2/AUT/E	UR LL/20	04/11		210 - 2119			
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities		Service pl	lan							
Control unit tree	Control unit list		~							10.2		
,	RESE - 520	eat) CO CON Misia Misia Misia Misia Misia Misia Misia Misia Misia Misia Misia Misia Misia Misia Misia		CCC-AD CCC-AD CCC-AD CCC-AD SDARS				Liett AL ACC EPS		Ce OT		
	ĸ	-CAN			NOST		F-GAN		PT-CAN			
Fault memory: Av	ailable				•	ECU resp	anding	e ECU n	ot respond	ting 😐	ECU not	fitted
Start vehicle test	Call up ECU functions									f	Display ault memo	iry

Control unit tree at the beginning of the vehicle test

## **Display Fault Memory**

After the vehicle test, go to the "Fault memory" mask. The read-out fault codes and the associated description will be listed. From this mask you can calculate a test plan.

- ► How to calculate a test plan:
  - ♦ Click the "Test plan" button.

(IN: VA20	Application 008	Vehicle: 3'/E90	VSAL/320d/M47/T2/AUT/	EUR LL/2004/11	<u>[]</u> .	
dentificati	ion Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan			
nformatio search	n Guided troubleshoot	Service function	Workshop / Operating fluids	Measuring devices		
<sup>r</sup> ault mem	Fault pattern					
Code	Description					
5DE3	Brake-pad wear: brai	ke pads, rear axle				
0001	No communication p	ossible				
94B6	Steering column swi	tching centre: interna	i fault			
951A	Steering column swi	tching centre: interna	i fault			
No. of faul	t memories 4	N. of fault men	ories O			Calculate
Displ detail t	ay Start quick sbie delete	Display entire				Calculate test plan

#### **Display fault memory**

You run the "Start quick delete" function when the guided troubleshooting is completed. You can find details about this function in Fault Memory section.

## **Editing a Test Plan**

The test plan lists the suspected components and functions.

The individual suspected components and functions are presented in white lettering against a dark background. Underneath them the appropriate documents and procedures are listed in black lettering against a light background (indicated in the "Type" column with "ABL").

Procedures localize a fault and provide advice on rectifying it.

- ► How to start a procedure:
  - ♦ Select the required procedure from the test plan.
  - ♦ Click the "Display" button.

Integrated S Technical A	Service pplication		A (	B > P	9		? 📼
VIN: VA2000	8		Vehicle: 3'/E90/S/	L/320d/M47/T2/AUT	EUR LL/2004/11		
Identificatio	in V	/ehicle test	Activities	Service plan			
Hit list	1	lest plan					
Note	Тура	Title				Status	Priority 🔺
		Supply, M	ASK multi-audio syst	em controller			4
	ABL	B6512_601	100-M-ASK Versorgun	9		0	4
		M-ASK Po	wer supply				5
	ABL	B6512_60	100-M-ASK Versorgun	9		0	5
		Navigation	n system, Japan				6
	ABL	B6590_100	000-Navigationssyste	m Japan		0	6
		Location o	determination				7
	ABL	B6512_60	104-Navigationssyste	m		٥	7
	ABL	B6512_500	006-CCC Navigations	funktion		0	7
			ASK multi-audie syst				
0	ABL	B6512_601	100-M-ASK Versorgur	g		¢	8
		Supply, M	OST Japan Navigatio				9
	ABL	B6590_100	000-Navigationssyste	m Japan		0	9
Hits: 11	Ŧ	liter: Default			O Not called 🔹	Performed 🔹 Mir	imised • Cancel
Back		Filters	Display symptoms	Show / Hide	Display entire		Display

#### Test plan

## **Running a Procedure**

A procedure (service program) is primarily designed to identify the cause of a fault. Further-more, service functions can be performed via procedures. Information can be displayed within a procedure, as well as measurements read out or entered. Furthermore, queries can be made available via selection screens.

After a procedure has been carried out, additional information will be added to the test plan, if this turns out to be necessary for further fault search or fault rectification. In the test plan, you can select and start another procedure.

The following mask gives an example of a question with the options "Yes" and "No".



#### Example of procedure and "Question" (no current screenshot)

After the test plan has been completed, you should execute the "Quick delete" function.

## **Terminating an Operation**

You can terminate an operation either by:

- ♦ Clicking the "X" symbol
- ◊ Identification of a new vehicle, or
- ♦ Calling up the start mask via the symbol with the same name.

In any case a dialogue will be displayed, showing options on how to terminate the operation.

Integrated Servic Technical Applica	e ation	<b>A</b>	19 1	P	00	5	1	1	?	X	X
VIN: VA20008		Vehicle: 3'/E90/S	SAL/320d/M47	T2IAUT/E	EUR LL/20	04/11					
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service p	lan							
Control unit tree	Control unit list			0			0				
Status	Abbr.		Control m	iod.name							
	AL	Close operation			1		7				
	AHM				1		1				
٠	AMP	Terminate	operation								
•	CCC-ANT										
	CCC-ASK	O Interrupt o	peration								
	SMBF	Before vehicle	handed over	to custon	ner, any fa	ults					
	CAS	still present in t function "Quici	he vehicle m k delete".	ust be de	leted with	the	1				
•	CCC-A										
٠	CDC										
	CID	Cancel				ок					
	DAB		Langicar cu	ner		2002	_				
	DSC		Dynamie :	Stability C	Control Mi	K60					
•	DWA		anti-theft	alarm sys	item						-
Fault memory: A	vailable			•	ECU resp	onding	ECU r	ot respondin	g =	ECU not	Itted
Start vehicle test	Call up ECU functions								1:	Display ault memo	ry.

#### "Close operation" dialogue

- ► How to terminate the operation:
  - ♦ Click on the "Start mask" symbol.
  - ♦ For example, select the "Terminate operation" option.

The procedure will now be included in the operations list. You can if required reopen it there.

# **ISTA Menu Structure**

For a quick overview and a rapid introduction to ISTA, you will find a brief description of the guided diagnosis in the Introduction Chapter of this training information.

The following chapter provides more comprehensive overview of the ISTA workshop system's menu structure. This chapter describes the menus, masks, and buttons in detail.

This section will walk through step by step the operation and different features and functions of the system.



## Start Mask

When you access the ISTA workshop system, initially the start mask appears. Once a day a window appears when the system is booted up displaying the "ISTA usage notes".

After reading the note, close the pop up window by clicking the "Continue" button.



#### ISTA usage notes pop up

indopendent Services Field	ancal Angina (10)							THE R. LEWIS	
Integrated Servic Technical Applic	ər ation		â	1	E.	PE		?	×
	BMW Se Worksho	rvice op System					MINI Work	Service shop Sy	/stem
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Set	vice plan					
News								Date	
ISTA version 2.	18 - New contents f	brdiagnosis						#10/23/20	09
									_
-									
									i i
									-
-									_
								222	
								Disj	лау

**ISTA Home page** 

In the start mask you can:

- ◊ read new items.
- ◊ access standard functions via the symbol bar.
- ◊ access "Identification" main menu and initiate an operation.
- ◊ access the main menu "Activities" and search for vehicle-specific information.

When working on a vehicle and going through the main menu using the menu items "Identification", "Vehicle test", "Activities" and "Service plan", you normally work from left to right.

## **Displaying New Items**

The content range of the start mask contains a multicolumn listing of news from BMW headquarters.

The columns have the following meanings:

- ◊ **News**: shows the titles of all available news items.
- Oate: shows the date on which the news item was last edited. When the start mask is opened, the news items are sorted by date, with the most recent entry at the top. You can delete older news items to make the list shorter.
- ► How to change the sorting sequence:
  - ◊ Click the column header with an arrow symbol in the start mask.
- ► How to change the order using another column:
  - ◊ Click another column header. The arrow symbol jumps to the corresponding column.

The new order is retained until you quit the start mask.

- ► How to access a news item:
  - Click a news item. The selection bar jumps to the corresponding line. The "Display" button is activated.
  - ◊ Click the "Display" button. The selected news item is displayed.
  - ♦ Click the "Close" button, to return to the start mask.

## Identification

A vehicle can be identified with any of four approaches. During identification, to assure unique assignment of the diagnostic session, a new procedure will be created or an existing one used.

You can obtain detailed information on administering procedures in the "Background information on the procedure" section.

## **Vehicle Selection**

Before you can work with a particular vehicle, you must initiate an operation. The first step is to select the vehicle

- ► How to start the vehicle selection:
  - Click the "Identification" main menu item in the navigation area. If you do this from the start mask and have previously created operations in the workshop, then the "Operation details" tab is automatically selected. If you have selected the "Identification - vehicle selection" menu from an open operation, the workshop system changes over to the "Operation details" tab and displays the "Close operation" query.

Integrated Service Technical Applica	ie itian		源 > /	四 6	R:	? 🖃	X
VIN: VA20008	141 H	Vehicle: 37690/	SAL/3204/M47/T2/WUT/	EUR LL/2004/11			
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan				
Control unit tree	Control unit list				a	-	
Status	Abbr.		Centrol mod.name	5			
•	AL	Clese operation	5	Jet X	al		-
•	AHM	ciere operation	•	(best (X)	21		
•	АМР	@ Terminate	operation		0.		
	CCC-ANT	0					
	CCC-ASK	O Interrupt o	peration		0		
	SMBF	Before vehicle	handed over to custo	mer, any faults			
	CAS	still present in t function "Quici	the vehicle must be de k delete".	eleted with the			
•	CCC-A				(		
	CDC	L					
•	CID	Cancel		ок			
•	DAB	1	orginal contri				
	DSC		Dynamic Stability	Control MK60			
	DWA		anti-theft alarm sy	stem			-
Fault memory: A	vallable			ECU responding	ECU not responding	e ECUnoti	Inted
Start vehicle test	Call up ECU functions					Display fault memo	iry

#### "Close operation" dialogue

◊ Decide whether the ongoing operation should be terminated or interrupted.

## **Operations List**

In general, the vehicle identification /operation administration tries to uniquely assign an existing procedure or independently generates a new one. If no unique assignment is produced (e.g.: the other operation is open or several matching operations are available) the "Assignment/New" pop up or even the "Decision Operation/ VIN" pop up is displayed.

#### Note: In the "Central/online" operating mode (TeleServices and OSS), the "Operations list" tab is not provided because there is only ever one operation there.

The operations list is automatically brought to the front when you select the "Identification" menu from the start mask. The prerequisite is that procedures are already available in the "New", "Interrupted" or "In progress" statuses. Terminated operations do not become visible until the adjustable filter has been set accordingly.

Integrated Service Technical Applica	ie ition	1	1 1 1	00 Ø A	2 2 2
VIN:	12	Vehicle:	No	4	
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan		
Vehicle selection	Operation Information				
Operations list	VIN	Read out vehicle data	Basic features	1	
Basic features		VIN		Dataitime	Status
E46/3204/TOU	JR / M47	PE46672		15/04/2008 12:13	Interrupted
E46/318//SAL	M43/TU	JJ67307		15/04/2008 12:11	Interrupted
E46/3101/SAL	M43/TU	AY27004		15/04/2008 12:11	Interrupted
E82 / 1351s / COI	UPE / N54	VE99063		16/04/2008 11:25	Interrupted
E90 / 330i / LIM /	N52	PR23000		16/04/2008 10:52	Interrupted
E91/318i/TOU	R / N46	KW59004		16/04/2008 10:33	Interrupted
E32 / 750iL / LIM	17 M70	DC71313		16/04/2008 10:26	Interrupted
E32 / 750IL / LIM	1 / M70	DC71313		16/04/2008 10:26	Interrupted
E32 / 750IL / LIM	17 M70	DC71313		16/04/2008 09:37	Interrupted
E46/318CI/CO	UPE / N42	PK62200		15/04/2008 11:15	Interrupted
E62 / 1351s / COI	UPE / N54	VE99063		15/04/2008 11:09	Interrupted
E62 / 135is / COI	UPE / N54	VE99063		14/04/2008 13:49	Interrupted
Operations filter:	Default				
Filter operations list	Set standard filter				Accept

#### "Operations list" tab

The operations list shows a table of all previously completed operations depending on the filter settings and the time elapsed.

The table columns have the following meanings:

- ◊ Basic features: shows the basic features that are saved with the operation.
- Vehicle identification number: shows the vehicle identification number read out of the vehicle. Reading out the vehicle identification number is part of the vehicle identification procedure. It can also be automatically determined at a later stage with the identification via Basic features with a vehicle test.
- ◊ Date/Time: shows the date and time at which the operation was first saved.
- Status: shows the status of the operation. A distinction is made among the following statuses: - New operations (new) - Interrupted operations (interrupted) -Ongoing operations (in progress) - Terminated operations (terminated).

The table is sorted by default according to the "Status" column.

# Note: You can obtain background information on the "Operation" section of this training material.

#### Filtering the operations list

In the "Enter filter criteria" field, you can enter a basic feature, a VIN or a date. To do this use the on-screen keyboard. If you wish to enter several filter criteria, separate them from each other using space characters and/or check one or more selection fields in the "Status" area.

Confirm the input with the "OK" button. The "Filtering operations list" window closes and the workshop system returns to the operations list. The "Cancel" button closes the window without changing the settings.

Integrated Service Technical Application	
VIN	Vehicle:
Filtering operations list	I ? ×
	Enter filter sriteria:
	EV
	Status:
	New
	In progress
	Interrupted
1 2 3	
Z	X C V B N M (4 )> (? ) Post + End
	Dei 🛶 🕂
Cancel Keyboa	rd OK

#### "Filtering operations list" window

- ► How to display "terminated" operations in the operations list:
  - ♦ Click the "Filter operations list" button. The "Filtering operations list" window opens.
  - ♦ Mark the "Terminated" option and click "OK".

The following buttons are available in the action line:

- Set standard filter: This button resets the filter to the default settings; no filter criteria, and only operations with "New", "In progress", and "Interrupted" status are displayed in the corresponding sequence.
- ◊ Accept: Opens the selected operation. If you have selected an operation that has been terminated, a dialogue appears in which you can decide if this operation should be reopened or if a new operation should be created and opened.

Integrated Servic Technical Applica	e tion	6 1	2 × 1	00 5	<u></u>	III ? !	J X
VIN	1	Vehicle:	10	100	1000	20	
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan				
Vehicle selection	Operation Information				di les		
Operations Sist	VIN	Read out vehicle data	Basic features	1			
Basic features		Open / create op	peration	1	×	Status	
E32 / 750(L / LIM	/ M70					Interrupted	
E32 / 750IL / LIM	/ M70	C Passan av	ted operation			Interrupted	
E32 / 750(L / LIM	/ M70	e Reopener	ned operation.			Interrupted	
E46 / 318CI / CO	UPE / N42	O New operat	tion to be created and	opened.		Interrupted	
EB2 / 135is / COU	JPE / N54					interrupted	
EB2 / 135is / COU	JPE / N54					Interrupted	
E90 / 320d / SAL	M47/T2					Terminated	
E90 / 320d / SAL	M47/T2			2		Terminated	
E90 / 320d / SAL	I M47/T2		OK			Terminated	
E90 / 320d / LIM)	M47/T2	VA20008		18/04/2008 19	37	Terminated	
E90 / 320d / SAL	/ M47/T2	VA20008		18/04/2008 15	09	Terminated	
E90 / 320d / LIM /	M47/T2	VA20008		18/04/2008 17	:59	Terminated	-
Operations filter:	User defined						
Fiter operations list	Set standard filter					.A.c	scept

"Open/create operation" menu

## **Vehicle Identification Number**

If you select the "Identification" menu from the start mask, the "VIN" (Vehicle identification number) tab will be automatically selected. Only the last seven characters are required when entering the vehicle identification number. You can use the on-screen keyboard for making entries.

IN:		Vehicle:			 _		- 12-	
dentification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan					
lehicle election	Operation Information				1			
Operations list	MN.	Read out vehicle data	Basic features	í				
		Input VIN: AD16854			]			
12 10	9 )(# )(#	Input VIN: A016854	8	1	 ]			
		Input VIN: AD16854			)			
		Input VIN: AD16854			]			
		Input VIN: AD19354				Pas1		End

#### "Vehicle identification number (VIN)" tab

Confirm the input by clicking the "Accept" button.

After the vehicle identification number has been entered the ISTA workshop system checks whether an operation with this number already exists. If a corresponding operation exists, you can select it and thus continue or create a new operation. If no suitable operation exists, a new operation will be generated automatically. The associated basic features and other identification data will then be read out of the server database. The workshop system changes over to the "Operation details" mask.

## **Reading Out Vehicle Data**

The VIN can be directly read out from the vehicle by using "Read out vehicle data". First, the prerequisites are displayed.

Integrated Servic Technical Applica	e cien	<b>A</b>	1 1		23	<u></u>		?	1	X
VIN:		Vehicle:								_
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan							
Vehicle selection	Operation Information			1						
Operations list	VIN	Read out vehicle data	Basic features	1						
• Switch on vehic	le Ignition.									

#### Prerequisites for vehicle identification

- ► How to read out vehicle data:
  - ♦ Click the "Read out vehicle data" tab.
  - ♦ Connect a vehicle interface (ICOM) to the vehicle.
  - ◊ Switch on the ignition.
  - Click the "OK" button. The request begins with checking the existing connection and continues with the vehicle identification via the VIN readout. During this time, a progress bar will be displayed on the mask.

## **Identification Operation**

Integrated Service Technical Application		A 1	19 1	1	9	0	<u><u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u></u></u>	Sect	2	(F)	X
VIN:	10	Vehicle:			_		12				
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service	plan							
Vehicle selection	Operation information				-						
Operations list	VIN	Read out vehicle data	Basic fe	atures							
• Connect vehicle	e interfase.										
<ul> <li>Switch on vehicle ignition.</li> </ul>		Identification operation									
		Read out vehicle identification number (VIN)									
				5							
									1	DK	
										1997	

After reading out the VIN the workshop system checks whether an operation with the same VIN is already on the operations list. If this is the case, the operations list will be displayed to select an existing operation. Otherwise a new operation will automatically be created.

An exceptional case may occur if you have previously selected an existing operation from the operations list and then read out the vehicle data. If the VINs do not match now, the "Decision operation/VIN" pop up will appear.

### **Reading Out Vehicle Data via the Connection Manager**

Another option for starting the automatic read out of vehicle data is via the "Connection manager" mask. You can call it up at any time via the symbol bar. (See "Connection Manager" section.)
# **Basic Features**

If the vehicle identification number is unknown, you can alternatively use the "Basic features" tab.

Integrated Servic Technical Applica	e ntion	▲ <	1 × F		5		?	5	X
VIN:	1998. 	Vehicle:		_					-
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan				j.		
Vehicle selection	Operation Information								
Operations list	VIN	Read out vehicle data	Basic features	1					
Basic features		Model month				Selected ba	sic feature	1	
Model series		11				Model serie 5'	8;		
E designation						E designatio E61	in:		
Body		<u> </u>			1	Body: TOUR			
Sales designatio	an .	2				Sales design 520d	nation:		
Engine						Engine: N47			
National-market	version	2				National-mai EUR	rket versio	n:	
Lenkung						Lenkung: LL			
Gearbox						Gearbox: MECH			
Model year						Model year: 2007			
Model month						Model mont 11	h:		
Undo all	Undo							Accept	

#### "Basic features" tab

- ► How to identify a vehicle via its basic features:
  - ◊ Click the "Identification" main menu. The "VIN" tab will be selected.
  - ◊ Click on the "Basic features" tab.
  - ◊ If required, choose another basic feature from the left-hand "Basic features" selection list.
  - ◊ Define the contents for the basic feature by selecting an entry from the central list.
  - ◊ If necessary, repeat the entry with other basic features (the predefined sequence does not have to be observed) or click the "Accept" button.

After the individual basic features, the workshop system only offers items that are compatible with the previously selected ones. This excludes contradictory entries.

There is no need to enter all available basic features. However, you must define at least one. The more completely you specify the basic features, the more precisely the workshop system can select the matching documents.

# Note: Without specification of E-designation and in some cases the model year and month, vehicle-specific searches for the function structure, component structure, or service function structure cannot be performed!

# Note: It is not possible to manually select the features for security vehicles. Security vehicles can only be identified via the VIN.

After entering the basic features a check is performed to see whether an operation with the specified features is already present in the operations list and a selection is offered. If the selected basic feature combination is unknown, a new operation is automatically created.

# **Incomplete Entry of Basic Features**

If you click the "Accept" button without having defined all "Basic features", a pop up window appears containing a system message. Acknowledge the message with "Continue" to end the vehicle selection procedure or return to selection of the basic features with "Cancel".



#### "System message incomplete entry of basic features" pop up window

On completion of vehicle identification, the display switches over to the "Operation details" menu.

# **Operation Information**

"Operation information" is automatically accessed after the vehicle identification is completed. This is where information on the current operation and the identified vehicle is displayed.

# **Operation Details**

If you have completed vehicle selection or if you access the "Identification" menu from an ongoing operation, the workshop system automatically displays the "Operation details" tab.

This is where you can view general information to identify the vehicle, for example:

- ◊ Basic features of vehicle
- Technical actions on the identified vehicle with status "open", special defect code and name (title)
- ◊ Customer statement (customer complaints).

In the header, you will see the vehicle identification number ("VIN") and the determined basic features of the vehicle. If you select a vehicle via "Basic features", the basic features that you entered appear in the header.

# Prerequisites:

- ◊ Vehicle identification.
- Sefore the "Technical actions" can be displayed, the vehicle identification number must be known and an online connection must be established to BMW headquarters.



"Operation information" menu, "Operation details" tab

The following buttons are available in the action line:

- Perform vehicle test: For manual vehicle identification, this button starts the vehicle test. With automatic vehicle identification, the vehicle test proceeds in the background and the button only switches over to the control unit tree. Note: For the E21 – E31 Series, the BST mode is called up! (for more information see BST mode).
- ◊ Information search

# **Vehicle Details**

You can obtain more detailed information on the selected vehicle by clicking the "Vehicle details" tab, such as series equipment and special equipment. This information will be retrieved from a central database and indicates the vehicle status in each case on delivery from the factory. Retrofitted equipment or installations are not taken into account. Not all information is available for vehicles made before 1992. Therefore valid values cannot be displayed in all fields. Such fields are displayed without a value.

# Prerequisites:

- ◊ Vehicle identification via "VIN".
  - ntegrated Service Technical Application ? 10 100 -VIN: LC31313 Vehicle: X Reihe/E53/GEF2G/X5 3.0d/M57/TU/MECH/EUR LL/2003/10 dentification Vehicle test Activities Vehicle Operations report Operation details Repair Vehicle details Production data M57/TU MECH bottal registration untry version X5 3.0d EUR GEFZG Warranty type (peeudatype) Gan/bez numbe ALLR u Engine number Pairs oads Basic type (type code) FR71 ALLR Upbelstery and
- ◊ Online connection to BMW AG (via ISPA Broker).

"Operation information" submenu, "Vehicle details" tab (no current screenshot)

Note: The standard series equipment and special equipment listed in the "Vehicle details" mask corresponds to the state of the vehicle as it left the factory and may diverge from the present state of the vehicle!

# **Operations Report**

By clicking the "Operations report" tab you will receive a report on the ongoing operation with the dealer data and the data on the respective vehicle. The report is constantly updated during the execution of the operation.

senneal Applic	ation	1.1.1		1		- H	12	hind	1	
IN: A016854	100	Vehicle	3YE90/SAL/	320 sUN45/ME	CHEURLU	2006/07	X :			
dentification	Vehicle tes	t Activitie	5	Service plan						
ehicle election	Operation information								)	
peration etails	Vehicle details	Repair history		Operations report						
Hündler Sikera AC So.	10.0.									
ulPszezynska	. 103									
43,490 Mikele	100									
10-180 MI2010		and the second sec								
Vertriebspart	nernummer: 32 ner: 32060	080								
Vertriebspart/ Batriebsnum	nernummer: 321 ner: 32060	050								
Vertriebspart Betriebsnum ISTA Vergang	nernummer: 32 ner: 32060	080								
Vertriebspart/ Batriebsnum/ ISTA Vorgang	nernummer: 321 ner: 32060 rtifikator:	050	_	_	_	System	stand: 1.2)	203		_
Vertriebspart Batriebsnum ISTA Vorgang Vorgangsiden ISPA-Guid	nernummer: 321 ner: 32060 ntifikator:	080	-	-	_	System Datemet	stand: 1.2.	203		-
Vertriebspart: Betriebsnum ISTA Vorgang Vorgangstiden ISPA-Guid Vorgangsbegi	nernummer: 321 ner: 32060 riffkator: inn: 21/04/2004	060 8 08:58:44	-	-	-	System Datemet	stand: 1.2. and 2.0.	203 10.0		-
Vertriebspart: Betriebsnum ISTA Vorgang Vorgangsleen ISPA-Guid: Vorgangsbeg	nernummer: 321 ner: 32060 ntflikator: Inn: 21/04/2009	960 6 08:58:34		_	_	System Datemat	stand: 1.2. and: 2.0.	203 10.0		
Vertriebsparti Betriebsnumi ISTA Vorgangsiden ISPA-Guie Vorgangsbegi Eahrzeugiden	nernunmer: 321 mer: 32060 ntfikator: inn: 21/04/2004	060 8 08:58:44 2he Fahrgestelln	mner			System Datemet	stand: 1.2.	203 10.0		
Vertriebspart: Betriebsnam ISTA Vorgang Vorgangslden ISPA-Guid Vorgangsbegi Fahrzeugdate Fahrzeugdate Fahrzeugdate	ner: 32060 Internation: 320 Inflikator: Inflikation: 2104/2008 Inflikation: Eing Inflikation: Eing	060 8 09:58:44 3be Fabrgestello, 2016654	immer Typschi	Jesel:	_	System Datemat	stanst 1.2. and 2.0. Ländera	203 10.0 wsführung	E	EUR
Vertriebsparts Betriebsnamn ISTA Vorgangsteen ISPA-Guid: Vorgangsbegi Fahrzeuglden Fahrzeuglden Fahrzestellm Marke:	ner: 32060 ner: 32060 nffikator: inn: 2104/2000 nffikation Eing in: innier:	odo 8 09:58:44 2be Fahrgestello, A016854 BMW PKW	mmer Typsohi Verkaufi	Jssel:		System Datemat VF71 320ei	stanst 1.2. and 2.0. Ländera E-Bezei	203 10.0 wsführung chnung:	1:	EUR
Vertriebspart: Betriebsnum ISTA Vorgangsiden ISTA-Quid: Vorgangsbegi Fahrzeugiden Fahrzeugiden Fahrzeugiden Fahrzeugiden Baurehe: Baurehe:	ner: 32060 http://www.autor. http://www.autor. http://www.autor. http://www.autor. http://www.autor.	oto 1 08:58:44 abe Tahrgestelin, A016854 BTAW PKW 3'	mmer Typschi Verkauft Antriab	Jssel: Idezeichnun;	,	System Datemat VF71 320si HECK	stanst 1.2. and 2.0. Ländera E-Bezei Karosso	203 10.0 usführung chnung: rieform:	E	EUR Bio SAL
Vertriebspart: Betriebspart: Betriebsram ISTA Vorgang Vorgangsliden ISPA-Guid Vorgangsbegi Pahrzeugidan Fahrzeugidan Fahrzeugidan Fahrzeugidan Fahrzeugidan Baureihe: Baureihe:	ner: 32060 ner: 32060 ner: 32060 nffikator: nffikation: 21004/2000 nffikation: Eing n: ninter:	oto s Ge:56:44 A016654 BRAW PKW 3' N45	immer Typschi Verkauft Antrieb Hubraur	lssel: ibezeichnun;	7	System Datemat VF71 320si HECK 20	stanst: 1.2. and: 2.0. Ländera E-Bezei Karosse	203 10.0 usführung ishnung: infeform:	I:	EUR Eso SAL
Vertriebspart Betriebspart Betriebsrum ISTA Vorgangslden ISPA-Guid Vorgangsbegi Pahrzeugidas Fahrzeugidas Fahrzeugidas Barreihe Baureihe Baureihe Motor: Lenkung:	nerrunner: 32 ner: 32060 rffikator: Inn: 2104/200 rffikation Eing rfikation Eing	oso a os:58:344 abe: Eshrupestellin, A016854 BMW PKW 3' N45 LL	mmer Typschi Verkaufi Antriab. Hubraur Gatriabi	Jssel: Ibezeichnun; s:		System Datenst VF71 320si HECK 20 MECH	stanst 1.2 and 2.0 Ländera E-Bezel Karosso	200 10.0 wsführung choung irleform:	r:	EUR EJO SAL
Vertriebspart Betriebsnam ISTA Vorgangslden ISPA-Guid Vorgangslden ISPA-Guid Vorgangsbegi Fahrzeugdate Fahrzeugdate Fahrzeugdate Fahrzeugdate Bahrzeus Marke: Baureihe: Metor Lenkung: Baujahr:	nerrunner: 32 ner: 32060 nffkator: Inn: 2104/2004 nffkatien Eing n: Inner:	0050 8 00550-344 ahe Fahrgestellin, A016854 BTAW PKW 3' Na5 LL 2005 (07	immer Typsohi Verkauft Antrieb. Hubraur Getrieb. Abgas:	Jasol: Bezeichnun; e: e:		System Daterat VF71 320si HECK 20 MECH KAT	stand: 1.2. and: 2.0. Ländera E-Bazei Kärossa	200 10.0 wsführung choung irleform:	E)	EUR EXO SAL
Vertriebspart Betriebspart Uorgangslden ISFA-Guid Vorgangsbegi Fahrzeugiden Fahrzeugiden Fahrzeugiden Baureite: Baur	ner: 32060 nffkator nffkator inn: 2104/2004 nffkation Eing n: inni	0050 8 00:50:344 2016:054 8 MW Potentialion M45 LL 2005 r 07	ammer Typschil Verlauf Antrieb Hubraur Getrieb Nigas: I-Stufe V	Jssel: daszeichnuny e: e: Verk:	7	System Datamit VF71 320si HECK 20 MECH KAT	stand: 1.2 and: 2.0. Ländera E-Bezel Karosse	203 10.0 wsführung chnung rileform:	r	EUR EXO SAL

#### "Operation information" submenu, "Operations report" tab

The screen display for the operations reports differs from the printed report because of its colored displays. The following information blocks are contained in the operations report:

- ◊ Dealer data
- ◊ Vehicle data
- ◊ Customer complaints (customer's own words, customer's quote, qualified)
- ♦ Start of operation (date, time)
- ◊ First vehicle test
- ◊ Fault memory data from the first vehicle test
- ◊ Test plan diagnosis start (first test plan)
- ♦ Test plan diagnosis end (last test plan)
- ◊ Information object selected (title, document type, identifier)
- Process object selected (title, start, end time stamp, identifier) plus process steps (inputs/outputs, ECU functions, measuring instruments actions)
- Vehicle test diagnosis end (last vehicle test)
- ♦ Fault memory data (last vehicle test)

# Print operations report or diagnostic report

- ► How to print out an operations report:
  - ◊ Click on the "Print" icon.
  - ♦ Select the "Document" option.
  - ♦ Click on the "OK" button.

# FBM Reports (FASTA)

FBM reports are always automatically produced in the background when an operation is terminated or interrupted (exception: OSS) and forwarded to BMW AG. In offline mode, the FBM reports are not created until the system is synchronized with the server.

# **Vehicle Test**

The vehicle test determines the control units installed in the vehicle and their variants, as well as their special equipment. Furthermore the vehicle test reads the diagnostic and service-related data from the control units and generates test plans, which become part of the service procedure. In the first vehicle test within an operation, vehicle-specific FASTA data are determined and logged.

# Prerequisites for the vehicle test:

◊ Vehicle identification

With manual vehicle identification the primary vehicle test starts by clicking on the "Perform vehicle test" button in the "Operation details" mask. With automatic vehicle identification, the vehicle test runs in the background of the "Operation details" mask. By clicking the "Perform vehicle test" button, the workshop system switches to the "Control unit tree" mask and runs the vehicle test in the foreground.

If required, for example after repair or modification work, you can restart the vehicle test manually.

- Note: For the E21 E31 Series, there is no vehicle test available. Clicking the "Perform vehicle test" button in the "Operation details" mask takes you to BST mode. Furthermore, the "Vehicle test" and "Activities – Guided troubleshooting" menus are inactive.
- Note: The "Operation information" submenu, "Repair history" tab function at present is only available in Germany!

# **Control Unit Tree**

The "Control unit tree" mask shows the configuration of the control units. While the vehicle test is running, the symbol of the directly accessed control unit will be displayed in the color of the mask. The vehicle test identifies the installed control devices and reads out the fault memory and the control device characteristics.

At the end of the vehicle test, the symbols in the control unit tree indicate the test result by means of the following colors:

- ◊ Green: control unit is responding
- ◊ Yellow: control unit is not responding
- ♦ Gray: control unit is not installed.

Integrated Service Technical Applica	e dian	A	4		x	0	15	1		?		×
VIN: VA20000	<i>w</i>	Vehici	: 37(590/3	SAL 02DaiMa	TUASTI	EUR LLO	004/11			- 20		
Identification	Vehicletest	Activit		Service	plan.							
Control unit tree	Control unit list											
	1.2	830 005 7844 984 984 984 980 980 980								ant. VTO Data		
	)	K.GAN			MORT		121	6	PLEAN			
Fault memory: Start	Callup				•	ECU resp	ponding	• ECU:	not rescon	cing -	ECU not Display	fibed
vehicle test	ECI2 functions									1	fault meno	HY.

#### Control unit tree (after vehicle test)

- ► How to repeat the vehicle test:
  - ♦ Click the "Start vehicle test" button. In the "Control unit tree" mask, the control unit symbols are updated again according to the vehicle test just completed.
- ► Thus the vehicle test starts automatically behind the "Operation details" mask:
  - ♦ Select "Identification" -> "Vehicle selection" -> "Read out vehicle data" in the navigation area to perform an automatic vehicle identification.
  - ◊ Continue as described with the "Read out vehicle data" tab.

The buttons in the action line do not become active until after the vehicle test, and have the following functions:

- ◊ Start vehicle test: repeats the vehicle test.
- ♦ Call up ECU functions: switches to the "Control unit functions" mask.
- ◊ **Display fault memory**: switches to the "Fault memory list" mask.

# **Control Unit Functions**

The control unit functions become accessible if at least one vehicle test has been completed for the ongoing operation.

- ► How to call up the control unit functions for a control device:
  - Olick on a control device in the control unit tree; or
  - ◊ Select a control unit from the control unit list.
  - Click the "Call up ECU functions" button in the action line. The following control unit functions can be displayed in three different tabs: - Identification - Diagnostic query -Component activation
  - ◊ Return to the original mask by clicking the "Close" button.

#### Identification

The control unit function "Identification" is selected by clicking the "Call up ECU functions" button.

#### "Identification" tab

VIN: VA20008		warmens, with	and arts for the	W47/T2WUT	EUR LL/2	004/11			
Control unit functions	- FRM								Į\$
Identification Qu	agnostic Jery	Component actuation							
ECU Name	FRM								
ECU Status	ECU res	pending							
SG-Informationen:	Coding	indez			16				
	Operatio	ng software			3.2	1.0			
	BMW Pa	rt number			69	61135			
	Function	software			5.3	15.41			-
	Date of	manufacture (DD.	(PYYYMM		10	50.2004			
	Hardwar	e number			10				
	Varianti	ndex			18	264			1
	Supplier	ł.			4				-
				_					-
					2				

The "Identification" tab contains the following data:

- ♦ ECU Name: name of the control unit version.
- ◊ ECU Status: communication status ("ECU responding", "ECU not responding").
- ♦ ECU Information: this is where the ECU readout specifications are listed.

The buttons in the action line have the following meanings:

- ECU Test: reads the ECU data out again. A progress display keeps you up-to-date with progress.
- Close: closes the display of the control unit functions and returns to the original mask.

# Diagnostic query

Access the diagnostic query by clicking on the "Diagnostic query" tab.

The content range is divided into two sections; The "Control unit functions" table lists the sensors belonging to the control unit and the "Function and status display" area indicates the current signal status.

Depending on the control unit, several sensor may be combined in groups whose entries you can open by clicking so that you can reach the individual sensors. Multiple selection is possible.

Technical Application	A	112	1	떙	S	1	-	?	X
VIN: VA20008	Vahicla:	37E90/SAL/320	diM47(T2)AUT/	EUR LL/20	004/11	Alter and			
Centrol unit functions - FRM									6
Identification Diagnosti query	Compon astuation	ent n							
Control unit functions			Funct	ion and sta	atus dispi	ay .			12
Dimming value			-Low	beam, left	t .				
Output									
Shart-circuit detection									
Switch, low beam									
100000000 0000		Contraction of the							38) 

"Diagnostic query" mask

The buttons in the action line have the following meanings:

- ♦ **Undo all:** undoes the entire selection in the table.
- ◊ **Undo**: undoes the last selection in the table.
- ◊ Query status: switches the cyclical update of the display on or off.
- ◊ Close: closes the display of the control unit functions and returns to the original mask.

# Component activation

Access the component activation by clicking on the "Component activation" tab.

The content range is divided into two sections: The "Control unit functions" table lists the actuating elements and the "Function and status display" area indicates the current status of an actuated component.

Depending on the control unit, several actuating elements may be combined in groups whose entries can be opened by clicking so that you can reach the individual actuating elements. Multiple selection is not possible.

Integrated Service Technical Applica	e tion	ŝ	4	200	F	P	99	\$	<u><u><u>a</u></u>:</u>	4.44	?	1	X
VIN: VA20008		Vehicle	: 3VE9	0/SALQ	20 d/M4	7/T2IAUT	EUR LL/2	004/11					
Control unit func	tions - FRM												X
Identification	Diagnostic query	Compo	onent on										
Control unit fur	otions				- unl	Funct	ion and st	atus disp	day				
Side-marker lig	ht, front					- Vehic	le lighting						
Main beam													
Brake light													
Direction Indica	itor light, rear												
Tail lamp and b	rake light				-								
Fog lights													
Registration-pl	ate light												
Tum-off light (f	B12/E93 only)												
Rear fog lamp													
Tail lamp, inner	é.												
Direction indic:	itor light, front												
Brake light, cer	itre				-								
1	1					1							
													12
Unde all	Unde	Ac	tuate	20								Close	

# "Component activation" mask

The buttons in the action line have the following meanings:

- ♦ **Undo all:** undoes the entire selection in the table.
- ◊ **Undo**: undoes the last selection in the table.
- Actuate component: displays the associated function name and the execution of the function in the "Function and status display" area.
- ◊ **Close**: closes the control unit functions display and returns to the original mask.

# Control unit list

The control unit list is another way of presenting the control unit tree. You can call up the list by clicking the tab as soon as the first vehicle test is completed and repeat it from the vehicle test.

The individual columns the following meaning:

- ♦ Status: This is where the status of communication with the control unit of the vehicle test is updated.
- ♦ Abbr.: The abbreviation for the respective control unit.
- Control unit name: A short description of the control unit appears at the beginning. When the vehicle test is performed, the control unit name is replaced by a complete description.

Integrated Servi Technical Applic	ce ation		
VIN: VA20008	100	Vehicle: 3%E90	10/5AL/3204/M47/T2/AUT/EUR LL/2004/11
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan
Control unit tree	Control unit list		
Status	Abbr.		Control mod name
	NL.		active steering
	AHM		Trailer module
	АМР		Amplifier
	CCC-ANT		Aerial tuner
	CCC-ASK		Audio system controller
	SMBP		Seat module, passenger
	CAS		Car Access System
•	CCC-A		Applications
+	CDC		CD Changer
•	CID		Central Information Display
•	DAB		Digital tuner
•	DSC		Dynamic Stability Control MK8D
•	DWA.		anti-theft alarm system
Fault memory: #	Available .		<ul> <li>ECU responding</li> <li>ECU not responding</li> <li>ECU not fitted</li> </ul>
Start vehicle test	Call up ECU functions		Display Fault memory

#### "Control unit list" mask

The buttons in the action line have the following functions after completion of he vehicle test:

- ◊ Start vehicle test: repeats the vehicle test.
- ◊ Call up ECU functions: only active if a control unit is previously selected. Changes over to the "Control unit functions" mask.
- ♦ **Display fault memory**: changes over to the "Fault memory" mask.

# Activities

# **Information Search**

Three different structure searches (Product structure, Function structure, Components and signals) and a text search are available in the "Information search" menu.

# Prerequisites:

◊ Vehicle identification.

# **Product Structure**

In the product structure menu, you can search for information in the main and subgroups. In the left-hand column, the required product group can be selected. The previously selected elements are clearly displayed in the "Selected structure elements" column.

Integrated Serv Technical Applic	loe cation	1	迎	8	9	ø	<u><u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u></u></u>		?	F	×
VIN: VA20008	NAC D	Vehicle: 3'IE90	SAL 020diM47/T2A	AUTR	URLLO	004/11	33		10		
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan								
Information search	Guided troubleshooting	Service function	Workshop / Operating fix	uids	Measur devises	ring s	1		Ű.		
Product structure	Function structure	Components and signals	Text search								
Subgraups					Select	ted struct	ture elem	ents			
1100 Engine, g	peneral			-	Main y	group: gine					1
1111 engine b	lock				Subgr	roup: winder h	ead with	cover			
1112 cylinder i	head with cover			-							
1113 oll sump											
1114 housing	caver										
1115 crankcas	e ventilation										
1121 oranksha	ft with bearing										
1122 flywheel											
1123 vibration	damper										
1124 connecti	ng rod with bearing										
1125 piston wi	th rings and pin										
4407 balancies	n shaffe			•	<u> </u>						_
Hits: 14	Filter: Default										_
Undo all	Unde	Filters								Start	

#### "Product structure" tab

The elements in the info line have the following functions:

- ♦ **Hits**: states how many elements satisfy the present search criteria. If a product group has not been selected, then the number of hits is "0".
- ♦ Filter: displays the filter status. If you have not changed the filter setting, then the "Default" status appears; otherwise it is "User-defined".

The buttons in the action bar have the following functions:

- ♦ Undo all and Undo: You may reverse individual or all operating steps so that you can enter new search criteria.
- ◊ Filter: You can call up a window with which you limit the search to certain time periods or information types, e.g. circuit plans or repair instructions . These filter settings are taken into account in the search.
- ◊ **Start search**: Start search using the selected criteria.
- ► How to search in the product structure:
  - Select one element in the left-hand selection list. Depending on the item chosen, in some cases further selection lists with additional options will be displayed, via which you can further refine your search criteria.
  - ♦ Further restrict the search criteria in the left-hand list. The previously selected items are clearly shown in the "Selected structure elements" column.
  - ◊ If necessary, you can refine the selection using the "Filters" button.
  - ♦ Click the "Start search" button.

When the search has been completed, the ISTA workshop system switches over to the "Service plan" and displays the hit list.

# Filters

The "Filter settings" window can be accessed via "Information search", "Service function" (See "Test plan") by clicking the "Filters" button in the respective window. You can change the filter settings for information types and/or define a time slot for the latest update of the documents.

In the default setting, the information types available in the respective search mode are preselected. These preselected as well as the manually selected information types are marked with a cross.

Integrated Service Technical Application	A 1	+ 8	图 <b>图</b>	£:		
VIN: VA20008	Vehicle: 3'JE90/SAL	.020d/M47/T2/AU1	NEUR LL(2004/11			
Filter settings						? ×
Last change	date: (DD MM YYYY):					
Time period	from:		Time period to:			
Information	apes:					
🔀 Repair	Instructions (REP)		Service Infor	nation (SIN)		
X Vehicle	Technical Diagnosis (FTD)		🔀 Fault Rectific	ation (FEB)		
X Tighten	ing Torque (AZD)		Special Tool	(SWZ)		
X Technic	al Data (TED)		Installation L	ecation (EBO)		
🔀 Functio	nal Description (FUE)		🔀 Wining Diagra	ım (SSP)		
🔲 Pin Ass	ignment (PIB)		Pin Array (ST	A)		
X Preced	ure (ABL)					
Cancel Defau	t Keyboard	Select	Select nothing		c	ж

#### "Filter settings" tab

The buttons in the action bar have the following functions:

- Cancel: the window is closed and the changed filter settings are not adopted. The filter status does not change and remains in the previous status ("Default" or "User defined").
- ♦ **Default settings**: resets the filter to the preset values.
- ♦ Keyboard: displays the on-screen keyboard.
- ♦ Select all: marks all information types.
- ♦ Selecting nothing: removes all selections from the information types.
- ◊ OK: starts the search.
- ► How to change the filter settings for information types:
  - Click on a specific information type that you would like to select or deselect or else click on the buttons "Select all" or "Select nothing".
  - ◊ Select or deselect individual information types as required.
  - Click the "OK" button. The workshop system adopts the selected filter settings and closes the pop up window. The number of hits is adapted accordingly, the filter status in the information line changes from "Default" to "User defined".

- ► How to define the period for the last update of the information type:
  - Obefine a date as the lower limit in the "Time period from:" field. If appropriate, use the on-screen keyboard. The date must comply with the order stated in brackets under "Last date change".
  - ♦ Define a date as the upper limit in the "Time period to:" field. The date entered has to be later than the one entered in the "Time period from:" field.
  - Click the "OK" button. The workshop system adopts the selected filter settings and closes the pop up window. The number of hits is adapted accordingly, the filter status in the information line changes from "Default" to "User defined".

If you click the "Select nothing" button, then the entered period will be deleted.

# **Function Structure**

In the "Function structure" window, you can search on several levels by selecting the function groups and functions.

Technical Applic	ation	A •	20 1	<u>u</u>		? =
VIN: VA20008		Vehicle: 37E90/	SALIO20diM47iT2/AUTA	EUR LL/2004/11	10	0.40
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan			
Information search	Guided troubleshooting	Service function	Workshop / Operating fluids	Measuring devices	e.	
Product structure	Function	Components and signals	Text search			
Level 6				Selected struc	ture elements	
Electrochroni	c mirror		7	Level 1 Body		
Mirror adjustm	ent			Level 2 Mirror		
Mirror heating				Level 3 Door mirror		
Mirror pivoting	1			Level 4 Driver's side		
Supply, FRM fe	ootwell module			Lovel 5 Electrochromi	o mirror	
Supply, JBE ju	nction-bax electronics					
Switch block, o	iriver's door					
Mar 4	Eliza Data It					
Undo	ritter, Detault					Start

#### "Function structure" tab

This operation is similar to that for "Product structure".

# **Components and Signals**

The "Components and signals" tab can be used to search for documents that relate to a specific component or signal.



#### "Components and signals" tab

This operation is similar to that for "Product structure".

# **Text Search**

As an alternative to a structure search, you can also use a text search.

# Prerequisites:

◊ Vehicle identification

Integrated Servio Technical Applic	ce ation	A	1	P		5	<u>.</u>	 ?	52	X
VIN: VA20008	200 V	Vehicle: 3	1/E90/SA	LI3204/M47/T2/AUT	EUR LL/2004	011		102		
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities		Service plan						
Information search	Guided troubleshooting	Service function		Workshop / Operating fluids	Measuring devices		1			
Product structure	Function structure	Component and signal	nts Is	Text search	1					
		Search te	rn:							
		turbochar	ger							
		<li>Searce</li>	h in the	document this						
		O Searc	ch in the	document						
		Q Searc	ch far de	cument number						
Filter: Default	04024									_
Keyboard	Filters								search	

#### "Text search" tab

- ► How to search for information with full text:
  - ♦ Select "Activities" in the main menu.
  - ◊ Select "Information search" in the submenu.
  - ♦ Select the "Text search" tab.
  - ◊ Restrict the search to document titles, documents (texts), or document numbers.
  - ♦ Enter the text string in the "Search term" field. If appropriate, use the on-screen keyboard. If necessary, you can refine the search using the "Filters" button.
  - ◊ Start the search with the "Start search" button.

# Note: When the search has been completed, the ISTA workshop system switches over to the "Service plan" function and displays the hit list.

# Additional general information on the text search

The text search is not case-sensitive. Entering "Engine" or "engine", for example, produces the same result in the hit list.

If several terms are entered and are separated by space characters, then the terms are linked by the operator AND in the search. Only those hits that contain all of the search terms entered are displayed.

Each search term must contain at least two characters.

# Additional information on the text search in headings

If you search for the term "Engine" in the title, for example, then all documents whose title includes the term "Engine" will be listed. Furthermore, all documents which have the term anywhere in their title will be added to the hit list, for example "Gasoline engine", "Engine mounting", "Electric engine".

# Additional information on the text search in the document

If you search in the document for the term "Engine", for example, only documents that contain this term will be found. Documents containing terms such as "engine mounting" or "gasoline engine" will not be included in the hit list. Numbers will not be taken into account when performing a text search in the document.

Specific information for individual markets is contained in the data packages in the form of pdf files. These can be displayed in ISTA. It is not possible to perform a text search in these pdf files. Title and document number searches are also supported in these documents.

# Additional information on the text search by document number

For searches by document number, the entered character sequence is only searched at the beginning of the document number. If the search term "123" is entered, then documents such as "123456" will appear in the hit list. Documents such as "456123" or "51234" will not appear in the hit list.

# Additional information on text searches by component code and signal name

In the wiring diagrams codes are used for components and signals such as "A149a" for a control device or "X1108" for a ground connection. The text search can only be used to find these codes in the title. All the documents are displayed in the hit list that contain the entered code in their title, e.g. "A149a" or "X1108". Searches by component code within the document are not possible. The same applies for searches for engine codes such as "M54".

# **Assisted Troubleshooting**

# Fault Memory

The "Fault memory" tab displays the fault memory entries read out from the control units in the vehicle test.

There are several ways to reach this tab:

- ♦ On completion of the vehicle test in the "Control unit tree" or "Control unit list" tabs by clicking the "Display fault memory" button.
- ◊ By selecting "Activities" -> "Guided troubleshooting" -> "Fault memory" in the navigation area.

Integrated Technical /	Service Application		C + F	<b>9</b>	Ú.	画 ?	
VIN: WA200	08	Vehicle: 3YE9	WSAL/820 d/M471T2/MUT/	EUR LL/2004/11	14	576	
Identificati	on Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan				
information search	Guided treubieshooting	Service function	Workshop / Operating fluids	Measuring devices			
Fault mem	Fault pattern						
Cade	Description						
5083	Broke-pad wear: brake (	pada, rear sale					
0001	No communication poss	ible					
8406	Steering column switch	ing sentre: interna	al fault				
151A	Steering column switch	ing centre: interna	al fault				
_	1						
No. of faul	memories 4	N. of fault men	nories O				
Draph pertail to	ny Start quick bie delete	Display entir	9			1	Calculate test plan

#### "Fault memory" tab

The fault memory list contains the following columns:

- ♦ Code: The fault code or the fault number appears in hexadecimal form.
- ♦ **Description:** This column contains a description of the fault location.

The following buttons are available in the action line:

- Oisplay detail table: choose a line and then click this button. You will then obtain the detailed information on a fault. If there are several results for the ambient conditions, then only the first and the last information block will be displayed.
- Start quick delete: this function is only active after a completed vehicle test. In each identified control unit, the fault memory is deleted and then reread. OBD control units are only deleted if a fault is set in your fault memory.
- ♦ **Display all:** adapts the widths of all columns to their maximum text lengths. If you click the button once more, the workshop system sets the columns to their initial widths. If required, a horizontal progress bar is displayed.
- ♦ Calculate test plan: starts the calculation and display of the test plan with the existing fault memory entries and selected diagnostic symptoms.

# Display detail table

ntegrated Service Technical Applicatio	n							Î.				
IN: VA20008		Vehicle	: 3'/E90/S	AL/320 d/M/	NT2/AUT/	EUR LLOS	04/11					_
ault details										100	?	2
Control unit:	Name:			Dynam	nic Stabilit	y Control	Mexico					
Fault memory:	Code: Location:			9466 Steeri	ng colum	n switchin	g centre:	internal f	ault			
Vehicle data:	Correctly not p Fault currently	not prese	nt.									
Update											Clos	e

#### "Fault details" mask

The "Fault details" mask contains supplementary descriptions on a fault code:

- ♦ **Control unit:** the name of the control unit version will be displayed.
- ◊ Fault memory: displays the fault code in hexadecimal form and, below this, fault location.
- Vehicle data: the fault status as well as details on the ambient conditions will be displayed (if available).

The buttons in the action line have the following functions:

- ♦ **Update:** the detailed information will be reread and displayed.
- ◊ Close: closes the window and returns to the "Fault memory" mask.

# **Fault Pattern**

The "Fault pattern" tab can be used to select fault patterns from a functional structure on many levels. They supplement the read-in fault memory entries and are taken into account in test plan calculation. The tab is not active unless the fault memories of the identified vehicle are being read out. You should select the fault patterns independently of the customer's complaints about the vehicle. Otherwise, only the saved faults will be taken into account when the test plan is created. Especially for complaints apart from the vehicle's electric system, the selection of fault patterns is especially important for assuring a successful diagnosis.

Select "Activities" -> "Guided troubleshooting" -> "Fault pattern" in the navigation area.

In the left-hand section of the content range, you can select the fault pattern from a hierarchical structure then start with the uppermost, most general level and work your way down to an exact description of the fault pattern. On the right side of the mask, the path through the selection levels is logged.

Define the fault pattern as precisely as possible; otherwise, the test plan generates an unnecessarily high number of test suggestions.

echnical Applica	ntian			99	5° 11	1	? 5	
/IN: VA20008		Vehicle: 3%E90/5	SALIB206IM47/T2/AUT/	EUR LL/2004/	11			
dentification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan					
nformation earch	Guided troubleshooting	Service function	Workshop / Operating fluids	Measuring devices				
auk memory	Fault pattern	2						
Level 2				Selected	structure ele <del>r</del>	unts		
120001 General	I malfunction at engin	•		Level 1 System-or	riented			
120002 No engi	ine start possible			Level 2 1200 Engli	ne control			
120006 Delayed	i engine response			Level 3 120010 /1	uctuation in e	ngine spee	d during acc	eleratio
120010 Fluetuer	tion in engine speed (	during acceleration	1			5 6		
120011 Consum	aption higher than exp	bested						
120016 Problem	ns when starting or sy	attching off the en						
120021 Shaking	when switching off t	he engine						
120037 Malfune	don, engine starting.	after shutdown in	terminal R					
in at fault man		No. of Fault write	erria: D					
The second second second		format	Disutas				Cale	data

#### "Fault pattern" tab

The following buttons are available in the action line:

- ◊ Undo all: deletes the existing selection and returns to the uppermost level.
- ♦ Undo: undoes the last selected step.
- Accept fault pattern: the previously selected symptom path (at least one level) is saved as a basis for subsequently calculating the test plan. The tab then returns as the "Undo all" button to the uppermost selection level. The selected fault pattern is then saved when you quit the "Fault pattern" tab.
- ♦ **Display fault patterns**: when clicking this button, a pop up appears containing all the previously saved fault patterns.
- Calculate test plan: starts the calculation and display of the test plan with the existing diagnostic symptoms.

# Selected fault patterns

The pop up window in the "Fault pattern" mask shows the previously saved fault patterns.

Integrated Service Technical Application	en			<b>呼</b> &	<u>a</u> <u>?</u>	F
VIN: VA20006		Vehicle: 3%E90/S	ALIS206IM47/T2/ALIT/E	EUR LL/2004/11		_
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan	1		
information search	Guided troubleshooting	Service function	Workshop / Operating fluids	Measuring devices		
Fault memory	Fault pattern					
Level2	Selected fault pat	berns				
0000 Current fau	List of fault patte	ms				
1200 Engine con	System-ariented	/ 1200 Engine con	trol / 120010 Fluctuati	an in engine speed	t during accelerati	
1230 Voltage and						
1614 Fuel supply						
2360 SMG transr						
2460 Automatic-6						
3100 Mechanical						
3200 Steering						
3450 Slip control						
3452 HII Start As						
3600 Wheels and						
No. of fault mers	Cancel	Delete			Close	1,11,2,11,2,12,12,12
1		Arrant	Direlat			and the second second

# "Fault pattern" tab with "Selected fault patterns" pop up

The following buttons are available in the action line:

- ◊ **Cancel**: the pop up window will be closed; the changes made will not be saved.
- ♦ **Delete**: deletes the selected entry.
- ◊ **OK**: the pop up window will close; the changes made will be saved.

- ► How to save a fault pattern and include it in the test plan :
  - ♦ Compile the desired fault pattern in the content range by navigating through the available levels and selecting the suitable terms or phrases.
  - ◊ If appropriate, click the "Display fault patterns" button and confirm with "OK".
  - ♦ Click the "Calculate test plan" button.

# **Service Function**

The "Service functions" area covers all service-related jobs.

You can search for service-relevant jobs under the "Service functions" tab, e.g. when searching a function description.

# Prerequisites:

◊ Vehicle identification

VIN: WA20008	134	Vehicle: 3YE90/	SAL/8204/M47/T2/MUT/	EUR LL/2004/11	055	128
Identification	Vehicle text	Activities	Service plan			
Information search	Guided troubleshooting	Service Sunction	Workshop J Operating fluids	Measuring devices		
Service functions						
Level4				Selected struc	ture elements	
Consumption of	alculation			Level 1 Drive		
DDE-CAS				Level 2 Dissel Electro	nics	
Exhaust-gas re	circulation			Level 3 Adjustment pro	oprams	
Idle speed				Level 4 Injector rate a	dustment	
Injector rate as	justnent			0.00008500785	807-0215-01	
Start basic inje	ction quantity					
Hits: 2	Filter: Default					
Lindo	Unde	Filters				Start

#### "Service functions" tab

This operation is similar to that for "Product structure".

# Workshop/operating fluids

The search functions in the "Workshop/Operating fluids" area are vehicle-independent (or operation-independent, respectively); you can use these functions without previously having to identify a vehicle.

# **Workshop Equipment**

The "Workshop equipment" tab can be used to search for general information on workshop equipment.

# Prerequisites:

◊ None

VINI: VA20034     Vanisticie: 3/E90/SAL-0204M4/112/AUT/EURIELL/2004/11       Information Information Information Beageneration     Ouided Broubleshooting Broubleshoo	Integrated Servi Technical Apple	ice ration	n -	¥.	1	09	ø	1	-	?		×
Service momation search         Value test         Antibities         Service function         Workshep / Operating fluids         Neasuring devices         Neasuring devices           Operating indupment         Deerating fluids         Test search         Neasuring devices         Neasuring devices         Neasuring devices           Register numbers         Selected structure elements         Selected structure elements         Neasurement, elements         Neasur	VIN: WA20038		Vehicle: 3VE90	ISAL (320-61M4711	2041718	UR LL20	04/11			118		
Information search     Oblided troubleshooting     Sarvice function     Workshop/ Operating function     Measuring devices       Norkshop gupment     Operating function     Test search       Register numbers     Selected structure elements       0 - General     - Heasurement, test equipment/op.inst.       1 - BMW special tools     - Heasurement, test equipment/op.inst.       2 - Messurement, test equipment/op.inst.     - Heasurement, test equipment/op.inst.       3 - Wheel alignment     - Heasurement, test equipment/op.inst.       6 - Body repairs, painting     - Lifting equipment	Identification	Vehicle test	Activities	Service pl	an							
Operating Register runbars         Description           Register runbars         Selected structure elements           D - General         Register runbars           1 - BRW saveial tools         Register numbars           2 - Measurement, test equipment/op.inst.         Register numbars           3 - Wheel alignment         How repairs, painting           5 - Body repairs, painting         E- Lifting equipment	information search	Guided troubleshooting	Service function	Warkshop Operating	( Naida	Measur devices	ing					
Register numbers     Selected structure elements       0 - General     Register numbers       2 - Measurement, test equipmentiop.inst.     Register numbers       2 - Measurement, test equipmentiop.inst.     Register numbers       3 - Wheel alignment     E - Measurement, test equipmentiop.inst.       4 - Weaking and cleaning systems     E - Measurement       5 - Body repairs, painting     E - Lifting equipment	Alorkshop equipment	Operating fluids	Test search									
D: General     Register numbers: 2: Messurement, test equipment/up inst.       1 - BKW special tools     Register numbers: 2: Messurement, test equipment/up inst.       2: Messurement, test equipment/up inst.     Register numbers:       3: Wheel alignment	Register runt	sera				Select	ed struct	ure elem	ents:			
1 - BMW special tools     Register numbers.       2 - Messurement, test equipmentop, inst.	D - General					Regist 2 - Me	ter numb	ers: ni, test e	quipment	log.inst.		
2 - Measurement, test equipment/op.inst. 3 - Wheel alignment 4 - Washing and cleaning systems 5 - Body repairs, painting 8 - Lifting aquipment	1 - BMW speci	al tools			_	Regist	ter numb	ens:				
3 - Wheel alignment 4 - Washing and cleaning systems 5 - Body repairs, painting 8 - Lifting aquipment	2 - Measureme	ent, test equipmentiop.i	inde.									
4 - Washing and cleaning systems 5 - Body repairs, painting 8 - Lifting aquipment	3 - Wheel slign	ment										
5 - Body repairs, painting 6 - Lifting aquipment	4 - Washing an	4 - Washing and cleaning systems										
8 - Lifting equipment	5 - Body repair	5 - Body repairs, painting										
	6 - Lifting aqui	prient										
7 . Tura carulea	7 . Turo carula	•										
	7.1.10		44 11 4	1 1 th	1.	1 440	100	1	- 1-	100	2174	1
the second of the second se												

#### "Workshop equipment" tab

This operation is similar to that for "Product structure". However, no filter functions are available in this case.

# **Text Search**

You can enter character strings for vehicle-independent information via document title, document contents or document numbers.

# Prerequisites:

◊ None

	ration	(100)	通りと	00 S	<u>a</u>	1	?	E ×
VIN: VA20008		Vehicle: 3YE908	SAL 020d/M47/T2/AUT#	UR LL/2004/11	100			
identification	Vehicle test	Autivities	Service plan				20	
Information search	Guided traubleshooting	Service function	Workshop J Operating fluids	Measuring devices				
Workshop equipment	Cperating fluids	Text cearch						
		Search term:						
		transmission of	63		1			
		A Search in th	a document title					
		e sizenne						
		O Search in th	te document					
		O Search fer	document number					
		O Search fer	document nunber	1				_
1	2 3 5 4	O Search fer	dozument number		: [	• *****		
[ 1 	2 2 3 4 Q W E	O Search fer	document number		: )[·	•	r .	
(1) I (1) I (1)		O Search fer	document Humber 5 3 3 1 4 1 9 7 1 4 1 1 9 7 1 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		:][·	•		
		O Search fer	dosumant number		)[; ][.	•		
[•]  •]  ↑		O Search fer	doumant Aurber		: ][; ][;	•		
		O Search fer	doiunant ruyber 7 (3 ) 7 U ( 1 ) 1 U ( 1 ) 8 N M		: ][ ][ ][	•   }                         		ine
		O Search fer	doiunant rupber 7 (a) (a) 1 (a) (b) 1 (b) (b) (b) (b) (c) 1 (c)		+	•	• • •	ind
		O Search fer	dorumant Huyber 7 (a) (a) 7 (U) (1 1 (C)				• • •	ind <b>•</b>

#### Example of "Text search" tab and "Workshop/Operating fluids"

- ► How to search for a random term:
  - ♦ From the displayed options, choose whether you want to search for a document title, document contents, or a document number.
  - Enter the text or number sequence that you want to look up in the "Search term" field. If appropriate, use the on-screen keyboard. Only part of a longer term has to be entered as search text, e.g. "Doc" for "Document".
  - ♦ Click the "Start search" button.

When the search has been completed, the ISTA workshop system switches over to the "Service plan" and displays the hit list.

# Note: You can find additional information on the title or document-specific text search in section of this training material.

# **Measuring Devices**

The measuring devices (Multimeter, Oscilloscope, Signals) are component parts of the ISTA workshop system. The corresponding measuring devices hardware, as well as the periodic measurement data logging, preparation of information, and provision of the results, is performed by the IMIB connected via LAN.

- ► How to start the measuring devices:
  - ◊ Call up the measuring devices via the "Activities" → "Measuring devices" selection in the navigation area.
  - ♦ Choose the "Measuring devices" tab. The "Connection manager" mask appears.
  - ♦ Select the desired IMIB and click the "Set up connection" button. The "Measuring devices" tab will then appear with the preset "Multimeter" preset tab.

Integrated Servic Technical Applica	re ation	n e	Y	£ #	1	9	ø	<u>î</u> :	-	?		×
VIN: WA20038	_	Vehicle: 3VE	90/SAL	.020dIM4	7T2IAUT/	EUR LL/20	04/11			1.1		
Identification	Vehicle test	Activities		Service	plan							
information search	Guided troubleshooting	Service function		Worksho Operation	ip í ng fluids	Measur devices	110					
Measuring devices												
Level1						Selected	etructure	element	iii			
Messgerüte					_							
1					- 10							
											οк	

"Measuring devices" tab

# Note: For more information regarding measuring systems refer to the IMIB section of this training material.

# **Service Plan**

# Hit List

The hit list shows the results of the search performed in the following menus: "Information search" (Chapter 3.4.1), "Service function" (Chapter 3.4.3.1), and "Workshop/Operating fluids" (Chapter 3.4.4). The search criterion entered is stated in the first line. All matching documents are listed under this. You can select and display a document from the hit list.

Technical A	pplication 08		Vehicle: 37E90/S	AL 020diM47/T2/AUT	UR LL(2004/11			
Identificatio	m 1	Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan				
Hit list		Test plan						
Nate	Туре	Title						Status
	FTD	M47TU/M8	7TU Cylinder Head a	and Pistons				0
	TED	Pistons wi	th Rings and Pins M	47 T2 / D20				0
	TED	Pistons wi	th Rings and Pins M	57 T2 / O25				D
	REP	Removing	and installing or rep	alacing all pistons (N	M7TU / M47T2)			0
_	_	_						_
-	_							
_	-							-
-	-							-
Hits: 4		Filter: Default			<ul> <li>Not called</li> </ul>	Performed	<ul> <li>Minimised</li> </ul>	· Cancelled
Back	0	Filters	Display antire					Display

#### "Hit list" tab

The individual columns have the following meaning:

- ♦ **Note**: provides information about the entry found.
- ♦ **Type**: states the information type, e.g. "REP" for "Repair instruction". All information types are listed in the "Table of types Information filtered" (in the next page).
- ♦ **Title**: the first title states the search criterion used to call up the hit list. The remaining lines contain the titles of the documents found.
- Status: shows whether the named document has already been accessed during the operation: - white circle: not accessed - green circle: performed or called up - yellow circle: minimized - black circle: display canceled.

The buttons in the action list have the following functions:

- ♦ **Back**: returns to the previous mask.
- ♦ Filter: calls up a menu for setting a filter. The filter determines which objects are displayed and which are suppressed.
- Oisplay entire: adapts the widths of all columns to their maximum text lengths. If you click the button a second time, the workshop system returns the columns to their initial widths. If required, a horizontal progress bar is displayed.
- ♦ **Display**: shows the selected document.

The following table shows the possible information types in the hit list with their abbreviations:

Abbreviation	Information type
PRC	Procedure (service program)
AZD	Tightening torque
EBO	Installation location
FEB	Fault elimination
FTD	Vehicle engineering diagnosis
FUB	Functional description
PIB	Pin assignments
REP	Repair instructions
SBS*	Operating fluids
SIT*	Service Information (Engineering)
SSP	Wiring diagram
STA	Connector view
SWS	(SI) Special tools/equipment
SI	Special tools
TED	Technical data
	* Only via Workshop/Operating fluids

Table of types of Information filtered

# **Viewing a Document**

- ► How to view a document:
  - ◊ Select a line. The corresponding entry is highlighted in color. The "Display" button is active.
  - ♦ Click on the "Display" button. The required document will be displayed.

Integrated S Technical A	ervice pplication	'n			9		25 ?	
MN: VA200		Vehicle test	Activities	Service plan	T/EUR LL/2004/11			
Hit list		Test plan			2			
Note	Туре	Title					3	Status
	FT	D M47TLWM	7TU Cylinder Head	and Pistons				0
	TE	D Pistens wi	th Rings and Pins M	47 T2 / D20				•
	TE	D Pistens w	th Rings and Pins M	57 T2 / D25				0
	RE	P Removing	and installing or re	placing all pistons (	MI7TU / M47T2)			0
_								
_								
_	_							
-								
Hits: 4		Filter: Default			<ul> <li>Not called</li> </ul>	Performed	• Mnimised	Cancelle
Back	5	Filters	Display entry					Display

Selecting a document for display

# **Text Documents**

Besides texts, text documents also contain graphics, photos and cross-references (hyperlinks). Cross-references appear in blue, underlined lettering; when you click a link, another cross-referenced document is opened.

A magnifying glass symbol is shown in text documents next to graphics. You can use it to zoom in on the corresponding illustration.

Integrated Service Technical Application	â	4	0 +	P	UB	55	1		?		X
VIN: VA20008	Vehicle	: J'IEBOIS/	L/320 d/M	47/T2/AUT/	EUR LL/2	004/11					
REP 1125530 Removing and insta	iling or replaci	ng all pisto	ns (M47T	U ( MIZ 12)							×
		Ri Jin Ti	emove m stallation ghten sc	ass balar 2' rews acci	ice/oil pu	mp. numberi	ing sequ	ence.			
	ੇਛ	N	ole: Defore walls.	e removin	g pistore	s, remov	e carbor	ı deposite	s from cy	ränder	
									-		-

#### **Text document**

♦ Close: closes the window and returns to the hit list.

# **Wiring Diagrams**

Sometimes the displayed wiring diagram may contain hyperlinks. These are recognizable as such by their blue lettering. Via hotspots, you can access detailed information such as installation position, connector view or pin assignment for one of the components. The additional information is displayed together with the scaled-down wiring diagram.



# Wiring diagram with hotspots and BirdView function

The action list offers several options for changing the presentations:

- Installation: call up a list of wiring diagrams that contain the selected component. To do this selected a component drawing and then click the "Installation" button. A list of wiring diagrams is displayed in a pop up. Here you select and display the desired wiring diagram.
- One of the Move: activated during selection. In this mode, you can move the document around the mask. To do this, click the document and drag it in the desired direction. If you click the "Move" button a second time, this function is switched off again.
- ◊ Zoom in: activated during selection. In this mode, you can magnify the document step-by-step. To do this, click the document; the clicked point will be centered. The "BirdView function" is active from the first magnification level. It facilitates navigation within a wiring diagram. At the top right of the content range, a window appears in which the small scale wiring diagram is displayed. You can then move the square, framed in red, in the x and y-directions; the excerpt of the wiring diagram in the content range moves accordingly.
- Soom out: zooms out step-by-step from a magnified view until the original size is displayed.
- Whole screen: is active when several documents are simultaneously displayed on the screen. It magnifies the view of the active document to fill the entire screen width.

If you have accessed detailed documents via a hotspot, clicking on this button will close the detailed document and magnify the view of the wiring diagram to the full screen size.

◊ Close: by clicking this button, you return to the hit list.

#### Display several documents simultaneously

Several documents can be displayed in the content range. This option is only available for wiring diagrams and the information that can accessed from them via hotspots. The following example shows the split display, in which you can switch to the right-hand window between additional documents via the displayed tabs.

Remember that the functions that can be accessed by using these buttons only apply to the active window. You can see which window is active by the color-coded tab.



Displaying several documents simultaneously, for example

# Whole Screen

Via the "Whole screen" button, you can select the active document (tab is highlighted in color) and display over the entire width of the screen. A second click on the "Whole screen" button deactivates the whole screen display mode and returns to the split display.

Integrated Service Technical Application	A	4 12		1	S S	1	?	1	X
VIN:	Vehicl	+: 71665/SAL	.1745i/N62/AL	THEUR/200	12/06				
EBO EO_E65_65_0013 N8, X13	1344, XD1056, X01	057							
Einbauort									
									_
ET-A	N8		_						
	4	-							
WASSAGE LOT	S.								
X01056			-						
X010	67		1						
		-	-						
		EOCE	5.65.0013 (B)						
			112	_					
Installation Mos	a Zi	oom in	Zoom s		Whole scree	ń		Close	

Whole screen example

# **Zoom Function**

You can call up the zoom function by clicking the magnifying glass symbol at the bottom right under the pictures. The magnified image will be displayed in a pop up window.



#### Zoom function example

The window offers the following functions:

- ◊ Zoom in: Magnifies the view in several steps. After the first click, scroll bars will appear at the bottom and right side of the display window, helping you to adjust the size of the required screen section.
- ◊ Zoom out: Zooms out the picture in several steps back to the original size.
- ◊ **OK**: Closes the window.



#### Zoom in example

# **Test Plan**

When first opened, the "Test plan" tab contains the test plan that has been calculated on the basis of the most recently read fault memory entries and/or selected fault patterns. Components/functions to be examined are presented in the multicolumn table in white lettering; the associated documents and procedures appear below the component/function to be examined in black lettering.

The information line on the left states the number of hits. The filter status states whether the default setting of the filter has been changed. Next to it, the symbols for process status are explained.

Clicking the "Calculate test plan" button in the "Fault memory list" mask or in the "Fault patterns" mask will automatically take you to the "Test plan" tab. Provided that at least one fault memory entry and/or fault pattern is present, you can also get to the mask manually via "Service plan" -> "Test plan" in the navigation area.

In the standard view, the mask only lists the test suggestions for components/functions to be examined, sorted according to priority. A selected line is highlighted with the mask color.

Integrated Service Technical Application VIN: VA20008				0 × F	9 8	<u>.</u>	? 🖃	E
			Vehicle: 3VE90/SAL/320d/M47/T2/AUT/EUR LL/2004/11			125		
identification Vehicle		ehicle test	Activities	Service plan				
HIT HIST	T	est plan						
Note	Турн	Title				Status	Priorey	
	-	Supply, N	I-ASK multi-audio syst	iem controller			- (4)	1
	ABL	B6512_60	B8512_60100-M-ASK Versorgung			0	4	T
		M-ASK Pr	wer supply					
	ABL	86512_60	100-M-ASK Versorgun	ug .		0	5	Ъ
		Navigatio	n eystem, Japan					
	ABL	86590_10	000-Navigationssyste	m Japan		0	6	٦
_		Lecation	determination				T	
	ABL 86512_601		104-Navigationssyste	m		0	7	
ABL		86512_50	B6512_50006-CCC Navigationsfunktion				7	
		Supply, N	ASK multi-audio syst					
	ABL	B6512_60	100-M-ASK Versorgun	a		0	8	7
		Supply, M	OST Japan Navigatio	1				
	ABL	86590_10	00-Navigationssystem Japan			0	9	
lits: 11	F	liter: Default	.75	10	O Not called 🔹	Performed 😐	Minimised • Ca	inceli
Back PP		Filters	Display	Show I Hide	Display entire		Displa	iy.

"Test plan" tab in the standard view
In the content range, the following information is displayed in the sortable columns:

- Note: A little red square signifies that a note about this test suggestion is available from BMW AG.
- ◊ Type: Information type. For example, "ABL" stands for "Ablauf" (procedure) and indicates a test program. After selection and clicking the "Display" button, the test program starts by attempting to localize a fault in the operation of the suspected component/function.
- ♦ **Title**: Description of the component/function to be checked, possibly with symptoms; title of the document or test program.
- Status: The process status is indicated with a circle symbol. An empty or colored circle indicates the following statuses:
- Empty: The procedure has not been started or performed yet, or the document has not yet been called up.
- ◊ Green: Procedure performed or document called up.
- Yellow: Minimized. This mode indicates that a procedure is running in the background. It can be displayed again via the "Display" button. Only one procedure can be active at a time. It is possible to switch to the "Control unit functions" mask and to start the functions there if the test module currently running is not using the vehicle interface.
- ♦ Black: Procedure canceled.
- Priority: Priority is graded from 1 in descending order; 1 represents the highest priority. The calculated priority figures determine the order of the object in the test plan. A two figure code, is displayed for suspect causes that are generated by a test procedure.

The buttons in the action line have the following functions:

- ◊ Back: Go back to the previous mask.
- ♦ **Filters**: Calls up a menu for setting a filter. The filter determines the information objects that will appear in the test plan and those that won't be displayed.
- Display symptoms: When you click this button, the symptoms (fault memory entries with prefixed fault code, fault patterns) appear below the selected component/function to be tested, indented and in small font. When you click a second time, the symptoms are displayed again.
- Show/Hide: With this button, you can show or hide the documents and procedures assigned to a component/function to be tested.
- ♦ **Display entire**: Use this function to widen or narrow text columns. Selecting the button again restores the original status.
- ◊ **Display**: With this button, you start a test procedure or display an information object.

Integrated Service Technical Application VIN: VA20038			A	4	習 1	1	9	S	8		? 🗔	>
			Vehic	Vehicle: Jer Reihe/E90/LIM/320d/M47/T2/AUT/EUR LL/2004/11								
dentification	Activ	Activities Service plan										
Hit list	Tes	t plan	1									
Note T	1pe	Title								Status	Priority	÷.
		Tasti prot	tie 6 JBC	Jurnitian I	Cos Electror Inceling							f
ABL W6135_W/			AS1-Kein	e Funktion	der Spritzd	üsenheizu	ng			٥	80	
		Tellerrupt	ed Facel tax	pply or tro of supply or	skilenn konskilenn							
	ABL	B1612_P	NDG-Unte	rbrechung	Kraftstoffv	ersorgung	oder Par	-		0	81	
		Interrupti 161481 Inter	ed flore) wa	pply or bre el supply er	ak dewn kreakstewn							
	ABL	B1612_P/	N00-Unte	rbrechung	Kraftsteffv	ersorgung	oder Par	ine .		0	82	
		Tetterrugto Tetterrugto	ed Forel 100	pply of bre clampping or	all dioven braukstewet							
	NDO-Unte	rbrechung	Kraftstoffv	ersorgung	oder Par	ine .		0	63			
		Teterraph Teterraph	ed Puel ass cragned fo	pipty at tire al mapping as	ati dawn breakdawn							
	ABL	B1612_P	N00-Unte	rbrechung	Kraftstoffv	ersorgung	oder Par	ne.		0	84	-
Hits: 8	Filte	r: User defi	ned				o Not	called .	Perturn	ned · Mr	emited • C	incelle

#### "Test plan" tab with symptoms displayed

- ► How to start a test procedure:
  - ♦ Select a procedure (Type = "ABL") in the content area of the "Test plan" mask.
  - ♦ Click the "Display" button.
- ► How to display the symptoms for a component/function to be tested:
  - Select a component/function (white lettering) to be tested in the content range of the "Test plan" mask.
  - ♦ Click the "Display symptoms" button.
- ► How to return to the test procedure running in the background:
  - Select the list entry with the "yellow" status in the content range of the "Test plan" mask.
  - ♦ Click the "Display" button.
- ► How to generally suppress the display of documents and procedures:
  - Select a component/function (white lettering) to be tested in the content range of the "Test plan" mask.
  - ◊ Click on the "Show/Hide" button.

## **Displaying and Editing a Procedure**

A "procedure" corresponds to a service program that start and runs. A procedure may contain dialogues (messages, questions), measurement instructions and procedure steps with vehicle communication. Depending on the objective, a service program can be used to localize a fault or to execute a service function. The test steps and procedures contained in the sequence always relate to the performance of a certain task. Examples of some masks are presented below.

### Message

A message provides you with information and results. Confirm the message with the "Continue" button.

Integrated Service Technical Application	R			2	1	맹	25		?	-	×
Pgst-Nr: DM59801	Fa	hrzeug: 74	er Reihe	E85A.II	A7451N62	AUTIEUR	R LL/2002	K06			
B1214_NGVMO-Valvetronis-Str	linotor										
Ablauf In der gepruften Funktion ist e	n Fehler au	lgetreten.									_
Aligemeiner Fehler variabler Ve Reduzierte Leisburg	ntitrice										
Notposition (maximale Ventilofi	nungi des v	ariablen									
Verbitriebs ourde wegen einer Fehlereintrages angefordert.	Inderen										
Die Notposition konnte nicht e Motorbetriebnur mit verminder	reicht werd ter Leistune	en.									
mögilch.											
ursächlichen Fehler im variable	gieronzeitig n Ventiltriel	auf,									
Mit > weiter aur Fehlerursache											

Message example

## Substitute value input

A substitute value must be entered if no measuring instruments are available. In this case, you have to make the measurements with an external instrument and enter the reading into the displayed fields.

A	4 20	3	1	먱	350			?		X
Fahrze	ug: 7er Reihe	E66/LIM/7	4601462	AUT/EUP	R LL/2002	06				
								l	出?	X
Ersatz 2	werteingabe:		Ohm							
								1	OK.	
	Fahras France P	Fahrzeug: Ter Reihe Fristzwerteingsbe: 2	Fahrzeug: Ter ReihelE65(LIMT	Fahrzaug: Ter Reihe/EBS/LIMI746i/N82	Fahrzeug:       Ter Reihe/E66/LIMT/46UN82/AUT/EUF         Fristowerteingsbe:	Fahrzaug:       Ter Reihe/EBS/LIM746IIN82/AUTIEUR LL/2002/         Fristowerteingabe:	Image: Sector Contraction   Financial Sector Contraction   Image: Sector Contraction   Financial Sector Contraction   Image: Sector Contraction Image: Secto	Image: Sector Contraction    Function   Image: Sector Contraction    Image: Sector Contraction   Image: Sector Contraction    Image: Sector Contraction  Image: Sector Con	Image: Sector Contraction   Firstweeteingsbe:   Image: Dimage: Di	Image: Ter Reihe/EBG/LIM74GIN82AUTIEUR LL200206

Substitute value input example

### Question

A question may display information and set values. The user has to select a reply from among several options. In this case, the available options are "Yes" and "No". When you click one of the options, the procedure continues to the next step.



Example of a question

## Displaying and editing a procedure in BST mode

Procedures for the E21 - E31 Series are displayed in BST mode. These are service programs that were created for the BMW Service Tester (BST) predecessor system and that have their own mask layout. Operation in procedures in BST mode differs from general operation. Other buttons are displayed in the action bar for navigation within the BST procedures.

Integrated Seni Technical Apple	os stien	A	4	[1]]	F	199			-	?	X
Fgendin, DA 617	23			Patrice	eg Serf.						
Versargungsber	medir ENG										×
Alling	Schaltplan	<u>h</u>									
123 Diagnose 123 Bautelle ( 123 Testmak 124 Fehlersp 125 Fehlersp	andragen anateuwrn Ale eichwr lesen eichwr lêschen										
Tastatur	Zarlick (4)		Hadh (&)	Rut	tiar (¥)	w	eter (+)	Q	attung (C	9	

### BST procedure (no current screenshot)

The buttons in the action line have the following functions:

- ♦ Keyboard: shows or hides the on-screen keyboard.
- ♦ **Back (<)**: calls up the next procedure step within the BST procedure.
- ♦ **Up (^)**: jumps to the next selection item in the screen above.
- ♦ **Down (v)**: jumps to the next selection item in the screen below.
- ♦ Continue (>): calls up the next procedure step within the BST procedure.
- ♦ Acknowledgement (A): with this button, you can confirm your selection.

# Symbol Bar

The following table provides an overview of the functions that can be directly accessed via the symbol bar.

Symbols	Function
Start mask	When clicking this symbol, the start mask will be displayed. The ISTA workshop system then terminates the ongoing operation (after confirmation).
Display previous document	Clicking this symbol takes you to the previous entry in the history list and displays the corresponding document. The symbol is only available if the history list contains a document which has been selected previously.
Display document history list	When clicking this symbol, the history list will be displayed.
Display next document	Clicking this symbol takes you to the next entry in the history list and the displays the corresponding document. The symbol is only available if the history list contains a document which has been selected previously.
<b>%</b> Administration	When clicking this symbol, Administration is accessed.
Connection manager	Click on this symbol to call up the connection manager. Connections to the vehicle interface or the measuring instrument adapter can be established or disconnected. This symbol is shown (on left) as "connected" when at least one device is connected to the system. If no connections are available, it is shown as "separated" (on right).
Operating mode	Click this symbol to display information on switching between offline and online mode. The status of the symbol reflects the present mode: online (left); offline (right).
Status display	Click on this symbol to call up the "Status display" window. Here, the status of the connected device and, where appropriate, the battery status is displayed.
Print	Click this symbol to access the "Print" function.

Symbols	Function
?	Clicking this symbol calls up the "Help" function.
Help	
	Clicking this symbol minimizes the application window.
Minimize	
×	When clicking this symbol, after a security prompt and the appropriate confirmation the current operation or the "ISTA" application is exited.
Exit	

## Start Mask

The start mask is in the home mask for the ISTA workshop system. You can obtain more detailed information on the start mask in Chapter 3.1.

## History list

While performing an operation, the ISTA workshop system creates a list of all documents accessed during this operation. This list is called the history list.

History				
No.	Туре	Title		Status
1	FTD	Abbreviations All models		
-				
Can	cel		Minimised sequence	Display

#### The history list

The history list works on the same principle as the history function in a web browser. The list adapts to the sequence in which the documents were accessed. The most recent document always appears in the last position. With the "Display previous document" and "Display next document" symbols, you can switch between the documents that have been accessed previously. Clicking the "History list" symbol opens a pop up window in which specific entries from the history list can be selected.

If you browse back and open another document via a hyperlink, then this new document will be added to the list after the one with the hyperlink and all entries listed below it will be deleted.

## Administration

You can access "Administration" via the administration symbol in the symbol bar. You can view information on the workshop system and change the settings.

## Client settings

The "Client settings" tab is displayed by default when "Administration" is opened. Here you can set the language of the workshop system, the brands for which you have authorization and the display period for news items. The selection applies to the client currently being used.

Administration				≞ ? ×
Client settings	Dealer data	Software status		
Select language:				
O Deutsch	English			
Select make:				
BMW				
Limit display time	e period for news:			
O 1 month	O 3 months	O 8 months	12 months	

## "Client settings" tab

The buttons in the action line have the following functions:

- ◊ **Cancel**: Closes "Administration" without changing the settings.
- ◊ **OK**: Closes "Administration" and saves the selected settings.

- ► How to select the display period for News:
  - ♦ Under the "Limit display time period for news" menu point, specify how old the oldest news item to be displayed should be.
  - Confirm your selection by clicking the "OK" button. The "Administration" window is closed and the workshop system returns to the most recently displayed mask. The change to the display period becomes effective the next time that you access the start mask or reboot the workshop system.
- ► How to select the brand(s) for which you have authorization:
  - ♦ Click an option in the "Select brand" area.
  - Click the "OK" button. The "Administration" window is closed. The change to the selected brand(s) becomes effective the next time that you access the start mask or reboot the workshop system.
- ► How to change the language of the displays in the workshop system:
  - ♦ Click an option in the "Select language" area.
  - Click the "OK" button. The "Administration" window is closed. The change to the language becomes effective the next time that you access the start mask or reboot the workshop system.

### Language settings

The language settings vary from one country to another and are determined in agreement with the respective market and BMW headquarters.

## Dealer data

When clicking the "Dealer data" tab, you can view the dealer data.

The "Security vehicles" line is only displayed if you have security vehicle authorization .

The data is centrally compiled by BMW. It is not possible to edit the dealer data in ISTA. If necessary, such changes should be carried out via the respective market organization.

Administration			🖾 ? 🗙
Client settings	Dealer data	oftware status	
Dealer:	Sales partner num	ber: 92060	
	Dealership numbe	r: 1	
	Name:	Sikora AC Sp.zc.o.	
	Address:	ul.Pszczynska 103	
		43-190 Mikolow	
		Polska	
	Make:	BMW	
Cancel			ок

### "Dealer data" tab

The buttons in the action line have the following functions:

◊ Cancel, OK: closes the "Administration" window.

### Software status

When clicking the "Software status" tab, information on the installed software packages will be displayed. The names of the software packages, information on their contents, version number, release date and the package quantity will be shown.

The "Installed contents packages" and "Installed system packages" option fields switch the display between content/data packages and system packages.

Administration				₽ ? ×
Client settings Dealer data S	oftware status			
Package designation	Subsystem	Version	Date	Size
ISTA Paket	Unknown	2.5.11	18/04/2008	
ISTA Paket	System	2.0.11	17/04/2008	
Cancel			_	ок

#### "Software status" tab

The buttons in the action line have the following functions:

♦ Cancel, OK: closes the "Administration" window.

If the computer has been in operating mode for more than 24 hours when you click the "Software status" "Decentral/Offline" tab, then the ISTA issues a warning that no update test is possible unless a server connection is reestablished. In this case, change the operating mode and click the "Software status" tab again.

## **Connection Manager**

If you click the "Connection manager" symbol you can independently initiate communication between the tester and vehicle (via ICOM). This function is automatically called up before communication with a vehicle is required.

The devices used in the HO workshop such as ICOM and IMIB are listed in the content range.

The individual column entries have the following meanings:

- ◊ **Name**: The name of the available device will be displayed.
- ◊ **Color**: Color coding of the device to facilitate a visual distinction.
- ♦ **Type**: Short description of the device.
- ◊ VIN: Shows the vehicle identification number of the vehicle connected to the respective vehicle interface.
- Connection: Shows the connection type (LAN: wire-based workshop network, WLAN: wireless workshop network)
- Status: Shows the availability of the communication device. Only those communication devices whose status is "free" are displayed. Previously reserved devices do not appear in the list.

Connection manager	Sonnection manager							
Name	Colour	Туре	• •	VIN	Connection	Status		
icomt		ICOM			LAN	Free		
		1			11			
Connect vehicle interface. S	witch on vehicle ignition.							
Cancel					Separate	Set up connection		

#### "Connection manager" tab

- ► How to establish a connection between the tester and vehicle manually:
  - ♦ Click on the "Connection manager" symbol.
  - ♦ Select the vehicle interface (ICOM) that is connected to the vehicle to be diagnosed.
  - ◊ Click the "Set up connection" button. Wait until the connection is established.
  - ◊ Create a new operation or select an existing operation from the operations list.

After the operation has been created, the "Operation details" mask will be displayed. From here you can search for information or start the vehicle test.

#### "Identification operation" progress bar

Identification operation								
Read out vehicle identification number	r (VIN)							

#### "Assignment/Generation of operation" mask

ssignment/generation of o	peration		
Basic features	VIN	Date/time	Status
E90 / 320d / SAL / M47/T2	VA20008	16/04/2008 13:38	In progress
E90 / 320d / SAL / M47/T2	VA20008	15/04/2008 15:33	In progress
E90 / 320d / SAL / M47/T2	VA20008	18/04/2008 16:18	Terminated
Cancel		New operation	ок

After the operation is selected, the "Operation details" mask will be displayed.

## **Operating Mode**

A change is for example required if a test run is to be conducted with the vehicle and the tester is to be taken along for other activities, such as the display of status values. In this case, you have to switch from "Online" to "Offline".

The operating mode switches to WSM. Only the current status of the ISTA client can be viewed and confirmed in the following pop up.



"Operating mode Online/Offline" pop up

Note: The change to the "Offline" operating mode must be effected via the WSM. If the device is simply disconnected from the workshop network, then ongoing processes such as data adjustment or updates may be terminated. This may result in indeterminable conditions on the ISID, up to and including a crash with loss of data.

## **Status Display**

When clicking on the "Status display" symbol, a window opens showing the status values of the connected hardware (ISID, ICOM and IMIB) as a color bar diagram with percentage display. The display includes information on the connection quality and the charge status of the batteries.

The respective bar can appear in the following colors, depending on the percentage value:

Green: > 75%, Yellow: 25% - 75%, Red (critical): < 25%

If one of the status displays enters the "critical" range, the "Status display" symbol is colored red.

Status displays		
Device	Name	Status
ISID	Connection Battery	0 %
	ок	

"Status display" mask (without ICOM and IMIB)

## Printing

The print function is available in all masks and can be accessed via the "Print" symbol. A pop up window with selectable print options appears.

The "Print screenshot" option is available in all masks and can be used to create a printout of the current mask. Other options depend on the displayed mask.

Examples of other print options:

- ◊ Table of contents
- ◊ List of news items
- ♦ Hit list
- ◊ Document
- ♦ Operation details

The workshop system automatically uses the standard printer defined by Windows.



"Print" window , example

## **Help Functions**

You can access a help function via the symbol bar or via the header of a pop up window (except in the case of very small pop up windows) by clicking the help function symbol. Help provides information on screens and functions. No operating instructions are included in the help function.

The help window can cover parts of the screen. However, it never covers the symbol bar or the header. The "Help" symbol is active when the help window is displayed.

When the help function is accessed, a help text is always initially displayed that relates to the most recently displayed mask.

You can access the following other help functions from here:

- ◊ Table of contents
- ♦ List of abbreviations
- ◊ Units converter



#### "Help for mask" tab

The "Help for mask" tab describes all elements (symbols, buttons, selection lists etc.) of the mask, from which help can be accessed. The "Mask" field (at the top of the content range) displays the name of the corresponding mask, e.g. "Operation details". Under this you can select an element from the available graphic overview, e.g. "Symbol bar". The workshop system then displays the appropriate help text. The "Overview" button is activated.

The buttons in the action line have the following functions:

- Overview: The workshop system returns from the overview of help functions to the mask.
- ♦ Close: The help window is closed.

## **Table of Contents**

You can select the help text for all masks and screen elements of the ISTA workshop system in the table of contents.

Help				
Table of contents	Help for mask	List of abbreviations	Units converter	
Content over	view;			
Start page				
Identification				
Activities				
Service plan				
Administration	7			
Information to	Pes			
Overview				Close

"Table of contents" tab

- ► How to access a help text from the table of contents:
  - ◊ Click one item in the "Content overview" area.
  - Observe the selected area, the help system may be subdivided in further subsections.

After selection, the active window shows the appropriate help text. The "Overview" button is activated.

## **List of Abbreviations**

In the list of abbreviations, you will find alphabetically arranged explanations of all abbreviations used on the workshop system.

In the content range of the mask, the abbreviations for the selected letter will be displayed. The default is the letter "A". If required, select another letter at the top of the content range or scroll the display down with the scroll bar. The "Overview" button is activated.

A O Short for	B (	C D Q R	E S	F T	G	н	4		100000			
0 ) - Short ferr	P (	Q R	s	т				1	к	L	м	N
- Short feri					U	v	w	x	z			
Α	100	Long form Ampere			1A	se is the level	of electrics	al current th	nat does no	t	Cogr.	-
AAMNA.		American / Administra	Association tion	of Motor Vehi	te The Star inter	AAMVA su idards Inst mationally.	ipports -> / itute) in spr	WSI (Amer reading sta	ican Nation ndards	খ -		
ABE		Algemeine operating p	Betriebser vermit)	laubnis (Gene	ral In G perr	ermany, o rit may be	nly vehicles operated of	with a ger in public hi	ieral operat ghways,	in; -	÷.	
ABS		Anti-lock bi	ralong syste	em (	ABS brak ABS a co the suc bloc A w ABS	Sprevents ors are app acity to be is consists is consists is not of unit a brake syste ha way the lang arning lam is failure.	the wheels slied AES I steered, of wheel-sp and electron em, ABS re at the whee p in the inst	from locki hus mainta eed senso ic pressur gulates the (s are just) trument clu	ng when the ris on the wh e control vis e brake foro prevented f ister indica	s S icle's iheels, stves in is in rom tes an	94	
ARSTASC	C.	Anti-Indichi	rake system	n with Automa	n AlF	dß mindels	s are enuice	serf as star	idard with	8	84	

### "List of abbreviations" tab

The buttons in the action line have the following functions:

- ◊ Overview: The workshop system returns to the letter "A".
- ♦ **Close**: The help window is closed.

## **Units Converter**

With the units converter, you can convert physical units for various categories (e.g. lengths, volumes, temperatures) into other appropriate unit.

Help				
Table of contents	Help for mask	List of abbreviations	Units converter	
Input Calegory Kilometre Metre (m) Centimetr Mile (mi.) Yard (yd.) Foot (ft.) Inch (in.)	1 Linear measure (km) re (om)	5	Result     2.54       Kilometre (km)     Metre (m)       Centimetre (cm)     Mille (mil.)       Mille (mil.)     Yard (yd.)       Feot (ft.)     Inch (in.)	
Keyboard	Delete	Select sategory		Clase

#### "Units converter" tab

The buttons in the action line have the following functions:

- ◊ Keyboard: Shows or hides the on-screen keyboard.
- ♦ **Delete**: Deletes the entered value.
- ♦ Select category: Selects a unit category such as length or volume units.
- ♦ Close: The help window is closed.
- ► How to convert physical units:
  - ◊ Click the "Select category" button. A pop up window is opened. It contains a selection list of the available categories.
  - Select the required category in the pop up window. The displayed window closes. The selected category is now displayed in the content range.
  - ♦ Select in the unit in the left-hand column into which you want to enter the value.
  - ◊ Select the unit into which the entered value should be converted in the right-hand column.
  - ♦ Enter a value in the "Input" field. If appropriate, use the on-screen keyboard. The converted value immediately appears in the "Result" field.

# **Minimize Workshop System**

When you click the minimize symbol in the symbol bar, the ISTA Application window will be minimized. The ISTA application can be maximized again via the Windows task bar.

Procedures that are displayed in BST mode cannot be minimized.

## **Close Operation/application**

You have various options for closing or interrupting an operation:

- ◊ Click the "Start mask" symbol in the symbol bar.
- ◊ Access the "Identification" main menu and begin a new operation by selecting the "Vehicle selection" item in the submenu
- ◊ Click "X" (Exit) in the symbol bar. In this case, a pop up appears in which you can select whether to exit the operation or the ISTA Application.



#### "Close operation/application" mask

- ► How to exit the ongoing operation:
  - ♦ Click the "X" in the symbol bar. ISTA will prompt a security note.
  - Select the "Terminate operation" option and click the "Close operation" button to return to the start mask; or
  - ♦ Select "Close application" to close the ISTA workshop system; or
  - ♦ Select "Cancel" to continue the current operation.

When exiting the operation, the workshop system switches back to the start mask from where a new identification procedure can be started.

- ► How to interrupt the ongoing operation:
  - ◊ Click the "X" in the symbol bar. ISTA will prompt a security note.
  - ◊ Select the "Interrupt operation" option and click the "Close operation" button to return to the start mask; or
  - ◊ Select "Close application" to close the ISTA workshop system; or
  - ◊ Select "Cancel" to continue the current operation.

When exiting the operation, the workshop system switches back to the start mask from where you can start a new vehicle identification operation. You can open the interrupted operation over the next 14 days from the operations list. It will then be set to the "terminated" status and no longer appears in the list.

If you want to display terminated operations in the list, you can change the filter settings accordingly.

# Operations

All data generated during a vehicle's stay in the workshop are compiled in an operation. These are identification, vehicle and work data.

An operation is always linked to a specific vehicle by vehicle identification via the VIN. It accompanies the vehicle from the initial identification via the vehicle test, through the diagnosis performed in the workshop and the info search for the repairs, to the conclusion of the repair and service work. Within an operation, the ISTA only provides information for the identified vehicle.

Procedures can be terminated or interrupted and continued within a certain period. An operation may also be continued on a different device and even in another language. An ISTA client can, however, only ever process one operation at a time.

## **Creating an Operation**

There are several ways to create a new operation. The procedures depend on how the vehicle has been identified.

## Identification via operations list

If you use the operations list to select an operation whose status is set to "in progress", then the workshop system copies it after a security check into a new "parallel operation" that it then opens. The parallel operation does not contain the log data of the initial operation. If the status of the selected operation is "terminated", however, then the workshop system opens it directly.

Multiple simultaneous access to the vehicle is automatically prevented.

## Identification via VIN Entry

If a VIN has been entered and the workshop system finds an operation record with the same VIN, then it opens the record directly or copies the contents of it into a parallel operation, depending on the status.

If several operations are available for the same VIN, then the "Assignment/generation of operation" mask appears first. In this mask, you can select and open an existing operation or create a completely new operation.

## Vehicle Identification by Reading Out Vehicle Data

The workshop system reads out the vehicle data and searches as previously described for a matching existing operation. If it does not find such an operation, it automatically creates a new one.

When the "Read out vehicle data" mask is open, the "Decision Operation/VIN" pop up may also appear

When an operation is open, you can read out the VIN directly from the vehicle via the connection manager. The workshop system checks whether the open operation matches the vehicle identification.



If this does not apply, the following pop up appears:

## "Decision Operation/VIN" pop up

## Continue with the open operation and separating vehicle connection:

Select this option if for example you wish to carry out an information search with the existing operation and associated vehicle ID number to which the connected vehicle does not belong. In this case, the workshop system separates the communication link to the vehicle in order to prevent data conflicts.

### Interrupt operation and continue work with connected vehicle:

Select this option if you have selected the wrong operation or have not yet closed a previous operation.

# Continue with the open operation, maintain vehicle connection and ignore read out VIN:

Select this option if you have removed the control module in which the VIN is stored from a donor vehicle and installed it in the vehicle to be diagnosed. In this case, the workshop system reads out the VIN of the donor vehicle.

## **Vehicle Identification via Basic Features**

After the input of the basic features, the workshop system searches for match operations in the operations list. If one or more hits are returned, then the "Assignment/Generation of operation" dialogue appears. In this mask, you can select and open an existing operation and open or create a new operation. The dialogue does not appear if the selected basic feature combination does not appear in the operations. In this case, a new operation is automatically created.

NAMES OF A DESCRIPTION OF A DESCRIPTION OF A DESCRIPTIONO	(MARK)		20060332
Basic features	VIN	Date/time	Status
E90 / 320d / SAL / M47/T2	VA20008	16/04/2008 13:38	In progress
E90 / 320d / SAL / M47/T2	VA20008	15/04/2008 15:33	In progress
E90 / 320d / SAL / M47/T2	VA20008	18/04/2008 16:18	Terminated
Cancel		New	ок

### "Assignment/generation of operation" dialogue

On completion of the vehicle test, the VIN is automatically made available and is retroactively stored in the operation. The next time the operation is opened via basic features, it will also be displayed.

## Identification in "TeleServices" Operating Mode

A new operation is always created here. The "TeleServices" operating mode can only be accessed via the "ISPA" application. When the ISTA Client is closed in the "TeleServices" operating mode, the operation is automatically set to the "Terminated" status.

## Statuses

An ISTA operation can adopt the following statuses:

- ◊ New
- ◊ In progress
- ◊ Interrupted
- ♦ Terminated



Conditions of an operation

## New

An operation has the "New" status, if the job creation is completed in ISPA (service advice) and the operation has not yet been opened in the ISTA workshop system.

If an operation is automatically created on an ISTA client as part of a vehicle identification, although this initially has the "New" status, it then switches to the "In progress" status. You cannot interfere with this change. A new operation is only created if the vehicle to be identified cannot be unambiguously assigned to any operations present in the existing operations list. If a matching entry appears in the operations list, a pop up appears (See below).

## In progress

An operation has the "In progress" status for as long as it is in process. In the meantime it is not possible to view the operations list, unless you use a second ISTA client. If you do not have this option, you will have to close the existing operation after vehicle identification before you can switch to the "Operations list". You will see this concluded operation with the "Interrupted" or "Terminated" status (depending on the selected option).

From the operations list you can select an operation with the "In progress" status. In this case, the workshop system creates a copy of the original operation.

## Copy of an operation or parallel operation

An "In progress" operation can be opened from the operations list on a second ISTA client or workshop PC. The following pop up appears:

A copy of an existing operation can also be created and opened, for example to carry out information searches. After the "OK" button is clicked, the "Operation details" mask will be displayed.

A parallel operation is a copy of the existing operation without its expiration dates and has all the same rights. A new identification is not required. Once vehicle communication is established, the VIN will be in any case reread and compared to the original VIN. If there is a disparity, a pop up will "Copy operation" pop up

appear.



#### Interrupted

The "Interrupted" status is set if "Interrupted" has been selected when closing the operation.

An interrupted operation can be reset to the "In progress" status if you select it from the operations list and execute other functions in the open operation. The operation can continue to use the data obtained before the pause.

Copy operation	
The operation is already in progr A copy of the operation is being p	ess. produced.
Cancel	ок

## Terminated

An operation is terminated if "Terminated" has been selected when closing the operation.

A terminated operation can be reset to the "In progress" status if you select it from the operations list or identify the respective vehicle from the start. This may be necessary, for example, if there are further customer complaints or the repair was not successful. In this case, the ISTA workshop system inquires whether the terminated operation should be reopened or whether a new operation should be created:



"Open/create operation" pop up

## Re-open terminated operation

A terminated operation will be opened, using the respective sequence data. The operations report will be continued.

Applications:

- ♦ The repair was unsuccessful
- ◊ There are new customer complaints

Operations with "Terminated" status are not displayed in the operations list by default. If you wish to select these operations in the list, you can change the filter settings for the operations list.

## New operation to be created and opened

Use this option if the current operation no longer has anything in common with the old (selected) one either in technical or chronological terms. The workshop system copies the selected operation. A new operations report will be created, however, and the original procedure data will not be used.

## Simultaneous access to an ISTA operation

An operation cannot simultaneously be processed by several service technicians. A complete copy of the operation is created so that several service technicians can work on the same operation simultaneously.

## Time-dependent status change

The time after the operations are removed from the operations list depends on the operation status. The "New" and "In progress" statuses are automatically replaced after 7 days with the "Terminated" status. The "Interrupted" status is set to the "Terminated" status after 14 days. Terminated operations are only displayed in the operations list if a filter has been set correspondingly. They can be reedited from this list. Operations with the "Terminated" status are completely deleted from the operations list only after 14 days (exception: if there is a very large number of operations and the reserved memory range on the ISIS is exhausted, then the oldest operations with the "Terminated" status will be deleted before the 14-day period expires.

## Workshop PC

The operation and its protocol data are always available on the workshop server. The PC is only used in online mode.

## ISID in offline mode

If you have to switch to the offline mode with the ISID, any open operation must first be interrupted or terminated. This operation will then be transferred to the ISID when you change over to offline operation. This operation is set to the "In progress" status on the ISIS and therefore cannot be simultaneously edited by another user.

You can edit other vehicles in offline mode. In this case, the operations and the associated protocol data are initially generated and saved locally on the ISID. When the device goes online again, it is resynchronized with the workshop server.

## TeleServices

As far as the user is concerned there is only one possible operation in the "TeleServices" mode. The "Operations list" tab is not available. Operations are automatically created and terminated and will be invisible from the user's point of view. It is not possible to pause. As is usual for all procedures, logs are generated for the FBM.

Documentation/ISTA User's Manual of 132

## Terminating an operation

You can close an operation with the following actions:

- ♦ Exiting the application
- Identifying another vehicle
   (Operations list, VIN, Read out vehicle data, Basic features)
- ♦ Calling up the start mask

#### **Scope of Functions for Operator Devices**

Menu	Tele Service	PC workshop online	ISID online	ISID offline
3.1 Start mask				
3.2 Identification				
3.2.1 Vehicle selection				
3.2.1.1 Operations list	-	x	х	x
3.2.1.2 Vehicle identification number	-	x	х	х
3.2.1.3 Reading out vehicle data	-	-	х	x
3.2.1.4 Basic features	-	x	х	x
3.2.2 Operation information				
3.2.2.1 Operation details	х	x	x	x
3.2.2.2 Vehicle details	х	x	x	x
3.2.2.3 Repair history	х	x	x	x
3.2.2.4 Operations report	х	x	x	x
3.3 Vehicle test				
3.3.1 Control unit tree	х	-	x	x
Control unit functions	х	-	x	x
Identification	х	-	x	x
Diagnostic query	х	-	x	x
Component activation	-	-	x	x
3.3.2 Control unit list	х	-	x	x
Control unit functions	х	-	x	x
Identification	х	-	х	х
Diagnostic query	х	-	x	x
Component activation	-	-	х	x
3.4 Activities				
3.4.1 Information search				
3.4.1.1 Product structure	х	х	x	x
3.4.1.2 Function structure	х	x	x	x
3.4.1.3 Components and signals	х	x	x	x
3.4.1.4 Text search	x	x	х	x
3.4.2 Guided troubleshooting				
Detail table	x	-	x	x
Quick delete	x	-	x	x
3.4.2.1 Fault memory	(x)	-	x	x
3.4.2.2 Fault pattern	х	х	x	x

## Scope of Functions for Operator Devices (Cont.)

Menu	Tele Service	PC workshop online	ISID online	ISID offline
3.4.3 Service function				
3.4.3.1 Service functions	x	-	х	х
3.4.4 Workshop/Operating fluids				
3.4.4.1 Workshop equipment	x	-	x	x
3.4.4.2 Operating fluids	x	-	x	x
3.4.4.3 Text search	x	-	х	x
3.4.5 Measuring instruments				
3.4.5.1 Multimeter	-	-	x	x
3.4.5.2 Oscilloscope	-	-	х	x
3.4.5.3 Signals	-	-	x	x
3.5 Service plan				
3.5.1 Hit list	x	x	х	x
3.5.2 Test plan	(x)	-	x	x
3.6 Symbol bar				
3.6.1 Start mask	-	x	х	x
3.6.2 Information object forward/History/Back	x	x	х	x
3.6.3 Administration	x	x	х	х
3.6.4 Connection manager	-	-	х	х
3.6.6Status display	-	-	x	x
3.6.7 Print	x	x	x	x
3.6.8Help	x	x	x	x
3.6.9 Minimize/Maximize	x	x	x	x
3.6.10 Close operation	x	x	x	x

"x" available, "(x)" restricted availability, "-": not available

## Abbreviations

Term	Explanation
BST	BMW Service Tester (former BMW diagnostics system)
DIS	Diagnostic and information system
FBM	Vehicle description module (repair history and vehicle details)
VIN	Vehicle identification number (VIN)
GSM	Global System for Mobile Communication
GT1	Group Tester 1
HO	Dealer organization
HTML	Hypertext Markup Language
ICOM	Integrated Communication Optical Module
IMIB	Integrated Measurement Interface Box
ISAP	Integrated Service Access Point
ISPA	Integrated Service Processes Application
ISTA	Integrated Service Technical Application
IDES	Integrated diagnosis development system
ISID	Integrated Service Information Display
ISIS	Integrated Service Information Server
LAN	Local Area Network
OBD	On-Board Diagnostics
OSS	Online Service System
PC	Personal Computer
PDF	Portable Document Format
pdm	Predefined diagnostic messages
ECU	Electronic Control Unit
SoWu	Individual equipment for vehicle details
SVG	Scalable Vector Graphics
TA-DB	Technical Actions - Database
TSSB	TeleServices Switch Board (not available in several markets)
VIN	Vehicle Identification Number
WLAN	Wireless Local Area Network
WSM	Workshop system management
XML	Extensible Markup Language

# Glossary

Term	Explanation
Administration	Shows and facilitates general settings; shows dealer data and the installed versions of the content and system packages.
Operating mode	The operating mode designates the application options for ISTA.
BST mode	The BST mode is the name of the mode of the predecessor system for the E21 - E31 Series. The associated diagnostic software has been imported to ISTA. It can also be recognized on an ISTA client by the different lay- out of the masks.
Client	In this context, a client is an ISTA program section on an operator device (in this case, ISID or workshop PC). It operates according to the client-server system and communicates with ISTA server components (software) located on the server (hardware).
pdm result	As part of the TeleServices a vehicle transmits diagnostic data that is compiled in an XML file and transmitted to the TSSB. In addition to the VIN, the file contains a list of the fault memory entries for all control devices.
Vehicle identification	Contains all functions that are required for vehicle identification via input of a VIN (vehicle identification number), by reading out the VIN from the vehicle, via selection of basic features or vehicle selection from an operations list.
Vehicle test	Contains all functions that are required for performance and display of the vehicle test. In the vehicle test the sta- tus of the installed control devices is determined and graphically presented.
Fault pattern selection	The identified diagnostic symptoms can be selected via the fault patterns.
Information display	Contains all functions that, as a result of an information search, deliver and display a document.
Information search	Contains all functions that, as a result of a query, deliver and display a hit list.
Installation/ Update	Installs and updates the content and system packets in conjunction with other components (WSM, JETstream).
JET stream	System for controlling installations and updates on ISIS.
Measuring instruments	Measurement and signal functions are made available via the measuring instruments. The measuring functions are, on the one hand, intended to measure current, voltage etc., in the vehicle, and on the other, to generate signals. Usually additional auxiliaries are required before measuring instruments can be used such as adapters, for example. The measuring instruments are used by instructions from a test program. Furthermore, the user can also use measuring and signal functions independently of a test sequence in the "manually controlled measuring instruments" mode. In this case, the user must make all settings and evaluations himself.
Test plan	The test plan provides a test proposal with the optimum sequence of test objects for selection on the basis of the fault statuses read out from the vehicle and the optionally selected fault patterns.
ISPA	Support system for service consultation. May not be used in all markets.
ISPA Broker	Interface service for checking data from BMW headquarters, e.g. technical actions. This service is always avail- able. It does not depend on installation of ISPA
Control unit functions	With the aid of the control unit functions, individual control units can be identified, interrogated and actuated.
Operations	All work on one vehicle is compiled under one operation. Operations can be created, interrupted, terminated and reported.
WSM	The Workshop System Management (WSM) helps to administer ISIS. This is where all administrative tasks are performed.

## **Fault Messages and Fault Rectification**

If a function cannot be performed due to a fault, a pop up with a fault message is displayed. If this pop up is displayed, please proceed as follows:

- ♦ Execute the desired function again.
- If a fault message is issued again, please note the displayed fault code and contact your local administrator. He will initiate suitable measures or send a message (via WSM) to Support.

If you find faults in an information object in terms of content or technical details, please also report this fault to support (via WSM). Examples of such faults can be a missing description in a set of repair instructions, incorrect wire color in the wiring diagram, or a graphic showing the place of installation that does not correspond to the vehicle in question or a similar one, for example.

You can obtain a description of the procedure for reporting faults in the WSM documents.

If the system needs more than approximately 10 seconds to execute a function, then a progress bar is displayed. With longer process times, the following pop up with options may be displayed:

#### System message



This is not a fault. The message signals that the execution of the function is ongoing. You can continue the action by selecting "Wait" or close the program with "Exit program". If no entry is made when a pop up appears, then the operation continues running in the background.

